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Rabin Dhakal & Associates

Chartered Accountants

e — -
INDEFENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
Ti) THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
UNNATI SAHAKARYA LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LIMITED
Opision

W bave audited the accompanying financial statements of Unnatl Sakskarva Laghebitta Bittiva
Sanstbe Lissited {pefomed w0 g “the company” o “UISLBSL™), which comprises the Stasement of
Financial Position az on Ashadh 30, 20E1 {commpondmg 1o Jully |5, 2024, the Stnoment of Proli or
Loas and Oher Comprehenaine bncoma, the Satement of Changes in Equity and the Statemsent of Cash
Flovrs fior e vear Ben ended, and notes 1o accounts including a semmary of the ssgmificant acooumting
podiches.

In nrr opinica, the afteeisd finascial itacments proient fairly, in all maserial respects, the fnancial
prersithon of USLBSL as a1 Ashadh 31, 2081 (luly 15, 2024} and s financial performimce. changes in
ety and cash flows For the yoar then emdod im accondance with Nepal Firancial Reporting Standands
with spphicable carve-outs,

Basis for Opinioa

W'e comdmtted our audit in accordance with fepad Standards on Auditing (SSAsk Our responsibilithes
mnder those stendards are firiher described in the Auditor’s Respomsibllitles for the Audly of the
Financisd Statermeniy sacfion of our reporl. 'We are independent of UPSLASL I nccondance with e
ICAN"S Handbook of the Code of Ethics for Professional Accosstants together with the etbdcal
requirensents that are relevant to our audit of the financial simements in Nepal, ssd we have fulfilled
wur other ethical responashilities in accondance with these requirements. We belleve tha the sadi
evidence we bave obiained is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide o basis for our opinics,

Key Amdit Matiers

Key audin marien sre thoss saers that, in cur proficssional judgensent, were of most Significance in
the audit ol the financial stalements of the curresd period. Thess maters were addresoed [ the conlext
af our sedit of e financial Ratcsncnts, and in forming our opinion therson, and we do nol provide o
separaie opEnaen of thisa malers. For each mafier below, car desaription of how our oudit addressed
the mamer (¢ peovided in the eonbext.

I mddition 1o the mamer described n the Basts for Opinion section, wo have determined the mafters
deseribed below 1o b the ey mudit matiers v be comsunicaled in our neport:

Koy Astvames e aur Audit addrened the mtter

laformation Technolegy (1T} Conlrols O Prosoekeng included: |
The ompmy's key frenchl scoomning el & We emsl he Jdeiign, operation, asd |
nepuiting priccses ae highly dependest ae Lhe effcctiveneis of contl over  granting, |
asomaied conrol over the company®s IT system. rermaval, and appropristeness of scocsa rights |
There b a risk et g i B change managoment. on B sooounting s reporting system of |
soprogation of dethes Or s ao0eis management the oompany:

wosirodt i helation 8 ey finsneial sourssg and i |
icpuriing sysiem may endenming our shility o place by Wa shisinel ml lpessd (e chamge )
somé reliance thereon In our sudi making i » key manageeenl proces aod, for 8 sample o
i ML, changes in inputs and condrod funcilors on

the sysiems, han boen reviewed & conflem
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Lean Losa Prevision / Impalrmesd of Loans asd
A zeres
As por Carve Owi on Pars 5.5 of WFRS 9 Finencial
|nstfuiments, Baaki and (nsncial lmdbstlonm shall
meauwe impabmnem oo on loars osd advesoes
igher o
B AScisl & @5 per Bormen prescribod by

Pl Raitra Deanic fior koan foss presvisicalng

[hreative 2 of Ushic! Diedne @

Alicrofiramce Insfistfons | mnd

B Amousi determined m ef e o on Pars

44 of NFAS % Finenclsl Instrumenis

sloptisg incerred lnan ks model.
As por normy presaribed By NAB, provishs =
prescribed e should he cremied on leans and
advancel Badd oo overduc sishe on loams and
advances as well as wifflesilon of loan, aates of
enllsigral and itites ol hommasr, sc
As per carve oul of Para 5.5 of NFES 9, inpainscs:
&f ani aad elvanced ihould be made on indivichal
irgmeTvere bands B boans and schoasces tha ane
e for homogeneus. groups of laans dhal sre nod
coaidened individually sigaificant, The ispairment
aof loars nd sdveeces unds Incumod losa el
require assenescal of fsturg cash [y a8 well &
Bailorical kns exporience of porifolies.
The smomi charped =i impairmont kas in
franciad sisiomeni v the doleminani of
ocrmpany s profilability and distributable dividends
making il $w key sudit matier,

[
e

d] W ooddered e cdeege mansgemeni,

STgAEing

impairmami of koars sd pdvenoes Included:
We reviewed sample crodit Mle for lodn tilizition,
borrowar credhi hisory and phevskeal varlBomtion of
privjecs (i applicable) off the loan.
4] Fof Amoum donod s por e pofms

prescribed by Nepal Rasrs bank:

s We reviewed the NRB 23 repowi and

the mdividual loans, The acoeracy of b
ovordus siaius and ol Realion was
carried et by sample tes done devagh
comparison of loan  salesesti with
repayment schedales of indidoal leara
¥ Dace g classification of the o B
mauswd, we oamied e el
caleulmboss of sverall loas files of e
cmpary and oempernd B Wit aolon
rabculathona 1o ensire the dboguacy of dhe
impairmen] chamges,
bl Poramoum derfeed 58 per carve oul o Para 5.5
of MFRES % .

¢ Wi cvilested the reascrabloness of

MR pement’s TR [

individully impaired jloms and on

prouging of the hemogesous o,

o We verified hey maussgdons, beted

relevant dala socurnscy. anad asevaed the

with carve dut on Para 5.3 of

NFRS T roquiresisis for Fransisl sse
irrypairmeeni.

The espairmest chaspos. 'wore made s por the porm

presavibed by Pepal Badrs Hesk and no materisl
Eueepliinr, were nofed.

Informatioa other tham the Financis| Smiements and Auditer’s Repart Therson

The managersenl ape responsible for the other information such sz Repon of Board of
Drecsors Chairman's Siabemmcnts 1o be presented in the company's Annual Repor for the vesr, Our
epinion oa the Fimncisl Statements does not cover that other infomsation sed, sccondisgly we do not
expreid any form of sssumnce or conchiion thereon

In connecifte with our sl of the fmancial sialoments, our responsibility & 1o neid e ol
information and, in daing s, consider whether the other information b maserlally inconstuess with the

G2l aifffes ATEIRoT Aot
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financial statements, or our know |edpe obtalncd during o audit or otherwise appears 1o be maorially
misstated. As the other information decumenis are in the prooess of completion, the mamagement hid
provided writlen representations that fing vemion of the dooumaents willl be provided when svailable,

Hespomsibilitles of Management snd Those Charged with Goversasee for the Financial
Sixtements.

Management b responsible for the prepamtion and lsir prescnmmtion of the financial statements (s
accopdance with Mepal Financial Reporting Standards with allewsd carvoouts, and for such inbermal
control as mesagemenl doerming s neceiiary o enable the peeparstion of finas:ial suements dut
are free from maserial missEioment, wietiser doe 1o fmud ar emor.

In preparisg the fnancial statements, marsgemen {5 responadhle for aiseiding the company's ability in
cofilifus a8 o going concem, dischosing. as applicable, matters related 1o going conoern and using the
going comcens hiaks of sccouniling unled mamsgement elther Indends io liquidsie the Company o 10
celie opofalions, of has no nealistic alternative bol 1 do so. Those charged with govemance are
Fespodible for versecing the Company's financial reponing process.

Awditor's Respossibilities for the Audi of 1he Finamcial Statements

Our objectives are 1o obtain reascnable assurance shost whether de finsscial siatements are free from
material misstsicment, whether des o fraud or error, and 1o kssue an sudiions report Ehat inchedes. our
opinion. Ressoeable sssurance is 8 high lowd of assurance bui is nof o gesrantee that an audil conducied
in accordance with MSAs will always detect a maserial misisatenent when It oxdns, Mistsiemonts can
arise from fraud or emmor and wre consldensd material if, individually or in the ngeregste, they comld
reasonably be evpecied to infleence the cconomic dectsions of wsers takem on the bases of these fimancial
Ataliomds,

As pari of an esd® in sccondanor with WSAs, we exercise professional judgmest and maintsin
prafiessional skepliciam threeghout the sadic. W also:

o Identify and ssuess the raks of mueal sistsicaent of the financlsl sisements, whether dus
1o Fraued or ermor, design and perform audit procodunes. responsive to these riskd, and obtain
sl evidence that i sulficlent asd sppropriate 10 provide o bals flor cur oplnboa. The risk of
not defecting & maierial misstalerent resulting from freed b Bigher than for one reselting froms
evror, as firnd may involve collasion, fonpery intentional omissions, misregecuentations, or the
averride of imlimal comtrol

®  Otagin an undersianding of intemal coniral relevant 80 the andit in order 1o design audit
iprocodurss that an appropriste in the clreumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
apinion o the cffectiveress of the Compamy's inicmal coatol

= Evalusie the sppropristeness of socounting polichs usad and the reasonablenass of pocounting
estimates and relsted disclosures made by management,

= Conclude on the sppropratendss of management's use of the poing concer basis of sccomnting
and, based on the sudt evidenos obtained, whether & malerial usceniainly exists relaied io
events or conditions that may cas! significant dose on the Compamy's abilisy 1o continue as o
woing comcem. IF we concluds that & material unceriwinty exlvis, we sre required W draw
atmeniion in our sudito:’s sepoet b the related diichosures in the fimancial ststemenes o, if such
dischdires e inadequate, o madify our epinien. Our conclusions are haned on the modit
evidienis oblained wp fo the dste of our auditee's repont, Hirnvover, lilure events or conditions
iy cauie the Company to cease o continee as 3 poing concem.
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= Evshaie the overmll presentstion, siraciure and conton of the (rancial siasomenis, including
e alisclonsnes, and whether the faancial stsbemenis represent dhe usderlying Irenasctiom. el
evenis inn manner that schicves fair pecaentation,

We commumicase with thise chanped with governandg regandiy smong ofher matters, the planned
soope and liming of the sudi snd tges fcant sl Nedings, inchefag ey Sgeilican deli i
in imsermaal comnad that we identi fy during our audi. We also provide those charged with govemsee
with o seatesmenl that wee bave comgliod with relevan sthical reguivemsents reganding independencs,
and 1o commumicate with thews all relatiommbips and oober saiiers that may reasceably be thought
o et on oy indepondionoe, and whane applicable, related safeguards.

Heport an Dther Legal and Begulatery Requiremenis
Baied o our gxamssation, we weulkd [fe 80 furiber repord that:

i. Wi have obiained all the information and explanatioss, which o the beit of our knowlodge and
Bac il weore necessany, for D prarpoae of andit.

i Based on our examination, proper books of sccounts as requined by law berve bees kept by the
company,

iil. The Statement of Financial Peaition, ke Statement of Profit or Lods and Cither Comprebersive
Income, the Cash Flow Stiement, and the Stmement of Changes &n Equity Sealt with by this.
Feenrl agiter with e ks of scoounts maintamed by the company.

bv.  Returm received from the branch officed ol the company were adeguaie for the purpose of audi
though the stiements werz not Indepeadensly audined.

v. The capiiad fend, rsk bearng foed and the provision for peobable impairment of esset of the
Micrafinancs and adequate as per the directives houed by Mepal Rastrs Bank. The capital fond
b m oo margisal kvl s masagemest i mogeied 10 make appropriaie sirbeglel o i
improsement and consistermly maistenance.

wi.  In cur opinion s i the hest of por infrmadon ssd scoceding 10 the explanation given io us
and fimem our examination of the books of sccounts of B company, we have nol oome acnes
any cane whiore the Board af Directors, the represeningive o sy eployes ol the company los
acted contrary to the previnlon of Liw relating 1o socounts nor cused direct loss or damage o
the company delibermtely or acted In & manner that would jwepandiae e inlerest and securily
od the comgarny, &s ibarchedens and it deposibors.

vil. The besinews of the company has been conducted satisfacterily md opersted within s
Jerisdiction and has heen funceioaiag a per the NRE Dliroctives.

Place; Kathmandu, Micpal
Daz: 13 Dezember 2024
LIEMM: 241 POACADT BTG

G2l aifffes ATEIRoT Aot aIffes gfddeet: Q0To/0Ta



It ggh dgfaa fa<ia der fafdse

Unnati Sahakarya Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
AT T SehellE “5” ARl TSITSTATATT HEAT

&~ aidloidal ergfaa Jar”
"Client-Friendly Innovative Microfinance Service"

Unnati Sahakarya Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Statement of Financial Position

As on Ashadh 31, 2081
As at As at
31.03.2081 32.03.2080
PARTICULARS NOTES
ASSETS
Cash and Cash equivalent 4.1 136,809,986 160,500,744
Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2 81,090,000 66,090,000
Placement with Bank & Financial Institutions 4.3 40,000,000 -
Derivative Financial Instruments 4.4 - -
Other Trading Assets 4.5 - -
Loan and Advances to MFIs & Cooperatives 4.6 - -
Loans and Advances to Customers 4.7 3,572,028,235 3,306,045,155
Investment Securities 4.8 1,000,000 58,955,336
Current Tax Assets 49 11,076,913 10,339,499
Investment Property 4.10 - -
Property and Equipment 4.11 35,081,698 52,011,076
Goodwill and Intangible assets 4.12 - -
Deferred Tax Assets 4.13 11,592,826 8,917,524
Other Assets 4.14 6,561,764 6,237,775
TOTAL ASSETS 3,895,241,422 3,669,097,109
LIABILITIES
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 4.15 - -
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 4.16 - -
Derivative Financial Instrument 4.17 - -
Deposits from Customers 4.18 1,096,507,959 1,124,385,627
Borrowing 4.19 2,386,393,149 2,144,258,662
Current Tax Liabilities 4.9 - -
Provisions 4.20 - -
Deferred Tax Liabilities 4.13 -
Other Liabilities 4.21 89,478,872 91,671,842
Debt Securities Issued 4.22 - -
Subordinated Liabilities 4.23 - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,572,379,979 3,360,316,130
EQUITY

Share Capital 4.24 246,865,736 229,020,618
Share Premium - -
Retained Earnings (22,706,568.72) (7,029,655.59)
Reserves 4.25 98,702,275 86,790,016
TOTAL EQUITY 322,861,443 308,780,978
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 3,895,241,422 3,669,097,109
Contingent Liabilities and Commitment 4.26
Net assets value per share 131 134.83

For and on behalf of Board As per our attached report in the even date

CA. Rabin Dhakal

Khadga Bahadur Rana Khil Raj Mainali Tulasi Ram Khanal ~ Lal Bahadur Thapa : .
Chairman Director Director Director For, Rabin Dhakal and Associates,
Chartered Accountants
Rajan Tiwari Yam Kumar Khadka Narayan Adhiakari Pradip Kumar Yadav
Director Director Acting Chief Executive Officer Chief - Finance Officer
&Rl aiffics Jmen=oT ot ER aiffes gfdidger: 20T0/0Tq
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Unnati Sahakarya Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended 31st Ashadh 2081 Amount in NPR

Particulars Notes | "Current Year" | "Previous Year"
Interest Income 427 | 514,855,839.21| 529,412,276.20
Interest Expense 4.28| 337,380,475.75| 369,575,588.20
Net Interest Income 177,475,363.46 | 159,836,687.99
Fee and Commission Income 4.29 43,108,318.22 36,681,693.05
Fee and Commission Expense 4.30 - -
Net Fee and Commission Income 43,108,318.22 36,681,693.05
Net Interest, Fee and Commission Income 220,583,681.68 | 196,518,381.04
Net Trading Income 4.31 - -
Other Operating Income 4.32 - -
Total Operating Income 220,583,681.68 | 196,518,381.04
"Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other 433 13,058,409 (11,633,092)
losses"

Net Operating Income 207,525,272.73 208,151,474
Operating Expense 216,543,687.17 235,324,612
Personnel Expenses 4.34| 149,056,032.95 163,651,605
Other Operating Expenses 4.35| 49,890,930.78 53,288,658
Depreciation & Amortization 4.36 17,596,723.45 18,384,349.24
Operating Profit (9,018,414.45) (27,173,138)
Non Operating Income 4.37 - -
Non Operating Expense 4.38 - -
Profit before Income Tax (9,018,414.45) (27,173,138)
Income Tax Expense 4.39 440,855.25 (6,996,640)
Current Tax - -
Income Tax Expense of Previous Year 4,949,951.40

Deferred Tax (Income)/Expense (4,509,096) (6,996,640)
Profit (Loss) for the year (9,459,269.70) (20,176,498)
Profit Attributable To:

Equity Holders Of The Financial Institution (9,459,269.70) (20,176,498)
Profit (Loss) For The Year (9,459,269.70) (20,176,498)
Earnings Per Share

Basic Earnings Per Share (3.83) (8.81)
Basic Earning Per Share Restatement Due to Bonus Share - -
Diluted Earnings Per Share (3.83) (8.81)

For and on behalf of Board

Gt arftfes [men=oT Jem ERN

As per our attached report in the even date
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Unnati Sahakarya Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31st Ashadh 2081

Particulars Notes "Current Year" "Previous Year"
Profit For The Year (9,459,269.70) (20,176,498.33)
Other Comprehensive Income, Net Of Income Tax
A) Items That Will Not Be Reclassified To Profit Or Loss 6,285,144.10
Gains/(Losses) From Investments In Equity Instruments
Measured At Fair Value
Gains/(Losses) On Revalation
Acturial Gains/(Losses) On Defined Benefit Plans 6,112,646.00 9,032,275.00
Income Tax Relating To Above Items (1,833,793.80) (2,747,130.90)
Net Other Comprehensive Income That Will Not Be Reclassified
To Profit Or Loss

B) Items That Are Or May Be Reclassified To Profit Or Loss
Gains/(Losses) On Cash Flow Hedge

Exchange Gains/(Losses) (Arising From Translating Financial
Assets Of Foreign

Operation)

Income Tax Relating To Above Items
Reclassify To Profit Or Loss

Net Other Comprehensive Income That Are Or May Be 4,278,852.20 6,285,144.10
Reclassified To Profit Or Loss

Other Comprehensive Income For The Year, Net Of Income Tax 4,278,852.20 6,285,144.10
Total Comprehensive Income For The Year (5,180,417.50) (13,891,354.23)
For and on behalf of Board As per our attached report in the even date

CA. Rabin Dhakal

Khadga Bahadur Rana Khil Raj Mainali Tulasi Ram Khanal =~ Lal Bahadur Thapa For, Rabin Dhakal and Associates,

Chai Direct Direct: Direct
alrman 1rector 1rector 1rector Chartered Accountants
Rajan Tiwari Yam Kumar Khadka Narayan Adhiakari Pradip Kumar Yadav
Director Director Acting Chief Executive Officer Chief - Finance Officer
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Unnati Sahakarya Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited "Client-Friendly Innovative Microfinance Service"
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Unnati Sahakarya Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Statement of Distributable Profit/Loss

For the Year Ended 31 Asar 2081
(As per NRB Regulation)

Amount in NPR

"As at "As at

Particulars 32.03.2081" 31.03.2080"

Opening Balance- Retained Earning -7,029,655.59

Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss (9,459,269.70) (20,176,498.33)

Appropriations:

a. General Reserve -

b. Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Fund

c. Capital Redemption Reserve

d. Corporate Social Responsibility Fund -

e. Employees' Training Fund -

f. Client Protection Fund -

g. Regulatory Reserve -

g. Other -

Profit or (loss) before regulatory adjustment (9,459,269.70) (20,176,498.33)

Regulatory adjustment :

a. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+) (3,502,808.76) 16,471,784.68

b. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+)

c. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/reversal (+)

d. Short loan loss provision on Non Banking Assets (-)/reversal (+)

e. Deferred tax assets recognized (-)/ reversal (+) (2,714,834.67) (6,996,639.92)

f. Goodwill recognized (-)/ impairment of Goodwill (+)

g. Bargain purchase gain recognized (-)/reversal (+)

h. Actuarial loss recognized (-)/reversal (+)

i. Other (+/-)

Distributable Profit or (Loss) (22,706,568.72) (10,701,353.57)

CA. Rabin Dhakal

Khadga Bahadur Rana Khil Raj Mainali Tulasi Ram Khanal Lal Bahadur Thapa For, Rabin Dhakal and Associates,

Chai Direct: Direct Direct:
airman rector 1rector rector Chartered Accountants
Rajan Tiwari Yam Kumar Khadka Narayan Adhiakari Pradip Kumar Yadav
Director Director Acting Chief Executive Officer Chief - Finance Officer
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“Client-Friendly Innovative Microfinance Service"

Unnati Sahakarya Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31st Ashadh 2081

Particulars

As at
31.03.2081

As at
31.03.2080

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Interest Received

509,591,893.72

550,216,016.81

Fees And Other Income Received

43,108,318.22

42,453,351.09

Dividend Received

Receipts From Other Operating Activities

Interest Paid

334,030,625.43

367,518,915.02

Commission And Fees Paid

Cash Payment To Employees

146,668,188.39

155,759,580.11

Other Expense Paid

63,066,473.78

65,053,369.88

Operating cash flows before changes in operating assets and liabilities 8,934,924.34 4,337,502.89
(Increase)/Decrease In Operating Assets

Due From Nepal Rastra Bank -15,000,000.00 -46,000,000.00
Placement With Bank And Financial Institutions -40,000,000.00

Other Trading Assets

Loan And Advances To Bank And Financial Institutions

Loans And Advances To Customers -273,481,475.36 204,068,450.61
Other Assets -2,999,291.29 -1,674,026.43
Increase/(Decrease) In Operating Liabilities

Due To Bank And Financial Institutions

Due To Nepal Rastra Bank

Deposit From Customers -27,877,668.06 -63,932,417.73
Borrowings 242,134,487.08 -84,959,376.27
Other Liabilities 14,415,107.32 -23,352,487.55

Net cash flow from operating activities before tax paid

-93,873,915.97

-11,512,354.48

Income Tax

-4,949,951.40

-10,979,543.16

NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A)

-98,823,867.37

-22,491,897.65

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase Of Investment Securities

Receipts From Sale Of Investment Securities

Purchase Of Property And Equipment

-667,345.00

-858,301.47

Receipt From The Sale Of Property And Equipment

Purchase Of Intangible Assets

Receipt From The Sale Of Intangible Assets

Purchase Of Investment Properties

Change in Investment Properties

57,955,336.34

Interest Received

Dividend Received

Other Received

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B)

57,287,991.34

-858,301.47

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Receipt From Issue Of Debt Securities

Repayment Of Debt Securities

Receipt From Issue Of Subordinated Liabilities

Repayment Of Subordinated Liabilities

Receipt From Issue Of Shares

17,845,118.00

Dividends Paid

Interest Paid

Other Receipt/Payment

NET CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C)

17,845,118.00

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

-23,690,758.03

-23,350,199.11

Cash and cash equivalents at Shrawan 1

160,500,743.85

183,850,942.96

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents held

Cash and cash equivalents at Asar end

136,809,985.82

160,500,743.85

For and on behalf of Board

et aiftfes arenRoT Jel
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Unnati Sahakarya Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Notes To Financial Statements
For The Year Ending 31 Ashadh, 2081

&~ aidloidal ergfaa Jar”
"Client-Friendly Innovative Microfinance Service"

4.1 Cash and Cash Equivalent
Particulars 31.03.2081 31.03.2080
Cash In Hand 9,029,114.87 83,436,411.94
Balances With B/Fis 127,780,870.95 77,062,408.52
Money At Call And Short Notice 1,923.35
Other
Total 136,809,985.82 160,500,743.81
4.2 "Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank"
Particulars 31.03.2080 32.03.2079
Particulars 31.03.2081 31.03.2080
Statutory Balances With NRB 81,090,000.00 66,090,000.00
Statutory Balances With BFIs 0.00
Securities Purchased Under Resale Agreement
Other Deposit And Receivable From NRB
43 Total 81,090,000.00 66,090,000.00
Particulars 31.03.2080 32.03.2079
"Placements with Domestic FlIs 40,000,000.00
Less: Allowances for Impairment
Total 40,000,000.00 -
44 Derivative financial Instrument
Particulars 31.03.2081 31.03.2080
Held For Trading
Interest Rate Swap
Currency Swap
Forward Exchange
Contract
Others
Held For Risk Management
Interest Rate Swap
Currency Swap
Forward Exchange
Contract
Other
Total -
Khadga Bahadur Rana Khil Raj Mainali Tulasi Ram Khanal ~ Lal Bahadur Thapa CA' Rabin Dhakal .
Chairman Director Director Director For, Rabin Dhakal and Associates,
Chartered Accountants
Rajan Tiwari Yam Kumar Khadka Narayan Adhiakari Pradip Kumar Yadav
Director Director Acting Chief Executive Officer Chief - Finance Officer
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Unnati Sahakarya Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Notes To Financial Statements
For The Year Ending 31 Ashadh, 2081

4.5 Other Trading Assets

Particulars 31.03.2081 31.03.2080

Treasury Bills

Government Bonds

NRB Bonds

Domestic Corporate Bonds

Equities

Other

Total

Pledged

Non-Pledged

4.6 | Loan and Advances to MFIs & Cooperatives

Particulars 31.03.2081 31.03.2080

Loans To Microfinance Institutions

Loans To FIs

Loans To Cooperative

Less: Allowance For Impairment

Other

Less: Allowances For Impairment

Total

4.6.1: | Allowances for Impairment

Particulars 31.03.2081 31.03.2080

Balance At Shrawan 1

Impairment Loss For The Year:

Charge For The Year

Recoveries/Reversal

Amount Written Off

Balance At Asar End

4.7 Loans and Advances to Customers

Particulars 31.03.2081 31.03.2080

Loan and advances measured at amortized cost 3,650,958,560.93 | 3,371,917,071.66

Less: Impairment allowances

Collective impairment 78,930,326.01 65,871,917.06

Individual impairment

Net amount 3,572,028,234.92 | 3,306,045,154.60

Loan and advances measured at FVTPL

Total 3,572,028,234.92 | 3,306,045,154.60

il aiffes ATerRoT JeT ¥Q aIffes Ufdeat: 20T0/0Ta
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Unnati Sahakarya Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Notes To Financial Statements

For The Year Ending 31 Ashadh, 2081

4.7.1:

Analysis of Loan and Advances - By Product

Particulars

31.03.2081

31.03.2080

Product

Term Loans

Short Term, Term Loan

Long Term, Term Loan

3,614,511,657.83

3,345,014,433.09

Hire Purchase Loans

Personal Residential Loans

Staff Loans

22,027,765.63

18,043,515.01

Other

Sub Total

3,636,539,423.46

3,363,057,948.10

Interest Receivable

14,419,137.47

8,859,123.56

Grand total

3,650,958,560.93

3,371,917,071.66

4.7.2:

Analysis of Loan and Advances - By Collateral

Particulars

31.03.2081

31.03.2080

Secured

Immovable Assets

888458773.2

922,560,753.19

Government Guarantee

Collateral Of Government Securities

Collateral Of Fixed Deposit Receipt

Group Guarantee

2,727,575,855.22

2,440,497,194.91

Personal Guarantee

Other Collateral

Sub Total

3,616,034,628.45

3,363,057,948.10

Unsecured

Grand Total

3,616,034,628.45

3,363,057,948.10

4.7.3:

Allowances for Impairment

Particulars

31.03.2081

31.03.2080

Specific Allowances For Impairment

Balance At Shrawan 1

Impairment Loss For The Year:

Charge For The Year

Recoveries/Reversal During The Year

Write-Offs

et aiftfes ArerRoT Jel
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Unnati Sahakarya Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Notes To Financial Statements
For The Year Ending 31 Ashadh, 2081

Other Movement

Balance At Asar End

Collective Allowance for Impairment

Balance At Shrawan 1

65,871,917.06

77,505,009.52

Impairment Loss For The Year: 356,018,726.35 532,416,603.22
Reversal For The Year 342,960,317.40 544,049,695.68
Other Movement
Balance At Asar End -
Total Allowances For Impairment 78,930,326.01 65,871,917.06
4.8 Investment Securities
Particulars 31.03.2081 31.03.2080
Investment Securities Measured At Amortized Cost - 57,955,336.34
Investment In Equity Measured At FVTOCI 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00
Total 1,000,000.00 58,955,336.34
Khadga Bahadur Rana Khil Raj Mainali Tulasi Ram Khanal ~ Lal Bahadur Thapa (;A' Rabin Dhakal .
. ) . . For, Rabin Dhakal and Associates,
Chairman Director Director Director
Chartered Accountants
Rajan Tiwari Yam Kumar Khadka Narayan Adhiakari Pradip Kumar Yadav
Director Director Acting Chief Executive Officer Chief - Finance Officer
et aiftfs et el ¥3 aiffics yfdidgel: 20C0/0CA
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AT T SehellE “5” ARl TSITSTATATT HEAT

Unnati Sahakarya Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Notes To Financial Statements
For The Year Ending 31 Ashadh, 2081

49 Current Tax Assets
Amount in NPR
Particulars 31.03.2081 31.03.2080
Current Tax Assets
Current Year Income Tax Assets 11,076,912.94 10,339,498.95
Tax Assets Of Prior Periods
Current Tax Liabilities
Current Year Income Tax Liabilities - -
Tax Liabilities Of Prior Periods
Total 11,076,912.94 10,339,498.95
4.10 | Investment Properties
Amount in NPR
Particulars 31.03.2081 31.03.2080

Investment Properties Measured At Fair Value

Balance As On Shrawan 1

Addition/Disposal During The Year

Net Changes In Fair Value During The Year

Adjustment/Transfer

Net Amount

Investment Properties Measured At Cost

Balance As On Shrawan 1

Addition/Disposal During The Year

Adjustment/Transfer

Accumulated Depreciation

Accumulated Impairment Loss

Net Amount

Total

CA. Rabin Dhakal

Khadga Bahadur Rana Khil Raj Mainali Tulasi Ram Khanal Lal Bahadur Thapa For, Rabin Dhakal and Associates,

Chai Direct: Direct: Direct
airman irector irector irector Chartered Accountants
Rajan Tiwari Yam Kumar Khadka Narayan Adhiakari Pradip Kumar Yadav
Director Director Acting Chief Executive Officer Chief - Finance Officer
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Unnati Sahakarya Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Notes To Financial Statements
For The Year Ending 31 Ashadh, 2081

4.12

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Particulars

Goodwill

Software

Other "Total

Asar 2079"

Purchased

Developed

Cost

Balance As On Asar End 2079

Addition During The Year

Acquisition

Capitalization

Disposal During The Year

Adjustment/ Revaluation

Balance As On Asar End 2080

Amortization And Impairment

As On Asar End 2079

Impairment For The Year

Amortization Charge For The Year

Disposals
Adjusmtment
As On Asar End 2080
Capital Work In Progress
Net Book Value
As On Asar End 2079 - -
As On Asar End 2080 - -
Khadga thadur Rana Khil Raj Mainali Tulasi Ram Khanal  Lal Bah.adur Thapa For, Rab?ﬁbizzgr; eli)n}:ialgzlsociates,
Chairman Director Director Director Chartered Accountants
Rajan Tiwari Yam Kumar Khadka Narayan Adhiakari Pradip Kumar Yadav
Director Director Acting Chief Executive Officer Chief - Finance Officer
a2l @it JmenRoT Ao ¥ % aifes ygfidest: 20To/0ca
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Unnati Sahakarya Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Notes To Financial Statements
For The Year Ending 31 Ashadh, 2081

4.13 Deferred Tax
Current Year
Particulars Deferred Tax Deffered Tax Deffered Tax
Assets Liabilities Assets/(Liabilities)
Deferred Tax On Temporary Differences On
Following Items
Loan And Advance To B/Fis -
Loans And Advances To Customers 492,598 - 492,598.19
Investment Properties -
Investment Securities -
Property & Equipment - 5,775,676 (5,775,676.42)
Employees' Defined Benefit Plan - (3,230,506) 3,230,505.60
Lease Liabilities 8,218,460 8,218,459.94
Provisions 5,919,537 5,919,537.37
Other Temporary Differences 492,598 (492,598)
Deferred Tax On Temporary Differences 14,630,595 3,037,769 11,592,826
Deferred Tax On Carry Forward Of Unused Tax
Losses
Deferred Tax Due To Changes In Tax Rate
Net Deferred Tax Asset/(Liabilities) As On Year End 11,592,826
0Of 2081
Deferred Tax (Asset)/Liabilities As On Shrawan 1 8,917,524
2080
Origination/(Reversal) During The Year 2,675,302
Deferred Tax Expense/(Income) Recognized In Profit (4,509,096)
Or Loss
Deferred Tax Expense/(Income) Recognized In Other 1,833,794
Comprehensive Income
Deferred Tax Expense/(Income) Recognized In -
Directly In Equity
Previous Year
Particulars Deferred Tax Deffered Tax Deffered Tax
Assets Liabilities | Assets/(Liabilities)
Deferred Tax On Temporary Differences On
Following Items
Loan And Advance To B/Fis -
Loans And Advances To Customers - 2,657,737 (2,657,737)
Investment Properties -
Investment Securities -
Property & Equipment - 16,129,163 (16,129,163)
Employees' Defined Benefit Plan 6,637,883 6,637,883
Lease Liabilities 11,166,168 11,166,168
oRil aiffies ATen=oT Jetl ¥\ difffep yfddeel: 20To/0Ta
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Unnati Sahakarya Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Notes To Financial Statements
For The Year Ending 31 Ashadh, 2081

Provisions

10,164,526

10,164,526

Other Temporary Differences

264,153

(264,153)

Deferred Tax On Temporary Differences

27,968,576

19,051,052

8,917,524

Deferred Tax On Carry Forward Of Unused Tax
Losses

Deferred Tax Due To Changes In Tax Rate

Net Deferred Tax Asset/(Liabilities) As On Year End
Of 2079

8,917,524

Deferred Tax (Asset)/Liabilities As On Shrawan 1,
2078

4,668,015

Origination/(Reversal) During The Year

4,249,509

Deferred Tax Expense/(Income) Recognized In Profit
Or Loss

(6,996,640)

Deferred Tax Expense/(Income) Recognized In Other
Comprehensive Income

2,747,131

Deferred Tax Expense/(Income) Recognized In
Directly In Equity

4.14

Other Assets

Particulars

31.03.2081

31.03.2080

Assets Held For Sale

Other Non Banking Assets

Bills Receivable

Accounts Receivable

1,635,760.08

302,614.34

Accrued Income

Prepayments And Deposits

421,850.00

126,431.74

Income Tax Deposit

Deferred Employee Expenditure

1,641,993.97

880,508.66

Others

2,862,160.31

4,928,220.68

Total

6,561,764.36

6,237,775.42

4.15

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions

Particulars

31.03.2081

31.03.2080

"Borrowing From BFIs

Settlement And Clearing Accounts

Other

Total

4.16

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Particulars

31.03.2081

31.03.2080

Refinance from NRB

Standing Liquidity Facility

Lender of Last Resort Facility from NRB

Securities Sold under Repurchase Agreements

et aiftfes ArerRoT Jel
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Other Payables to NRB

Total

4.17

Derivative Financial Instruments

Particulars

31.03.2081

31.03.2080

Held For Trading

Interest Rate Swap

Currency Swap

Forward Exchange Contract

Others

Held For Risk Management

Interest Rate Swap

Currency Swap

Forward Exchange Contract

Other

Total

4.18

Deposits from Customers

Amount in NPR

Particulars

31.03.2081

31.03.2080

Institutions Customers:

Term Deposits

Call Deposits

Other

Individual Customers:

Term Deposits

Saving Deposits

Savings From Members

1,096,507,958.69

1,124,385,626.75

Other

Total

1,096,507,958.69

1,124,385,626.75

4.19

Borrowing

Amount in NPR

Particulars

31.03.2081

31.03.2080

Domestic Borrowing

Nepal Government

Other Licensed Institutions

2,386,393,148.73

2,144,258,661.65

Other

Sub total

2,386,393,148.73

2,144,258,661.65

Foreign Borrowing

Foreign Bank and Financial Institutions

Multilateral Development Banks

Other Institutions

Sub total

Total

2,386,393,148.73

2,144,258,661.65

G2l aifffes ATEIRoT Aot ¥
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4.20

Provisions

Amount in NPR

Particulars

31.03.2081

31.03.2080

Provisions For Redundancy

Provision For Restructuring

Pending Legal Issues And Tax Litigation

Onerous Contracts

Other

Total

4.20.1

Movement in Provision

Amount in NPR

Particulars

31.03.2081

31.03.2080

Balance At Shrawan 1

Provisions Made During The Year

Provisions Used During The Year

Provisions Reversed During The Year

Unwind of Discount

Balance at Asar end

421

Other Liabilities

Amount in NPR

Particulars

31.03.2081

31.03.2080

Liability For Employees Defined Benefit Obligations

13,268,352.00

12,405,289.00

Liability For Long-Service Leave

29,577,684.00

31,812,568.00

Short-Term Employee Benefits

1,037,670.00

Social Security Fund Payable

Service Charge Refund Payable to Customers

9,654,557.62

5,982,230.62

Bills Payable

Creditors And Accruals

1,133,772.62

766,439.13

Interest Payable On Deposit

Interest Payable On Borrowing

Liabilities On Deferred Grant Income

Unpaid Dividend

Liabilities Under Finance Lease

27,394,866.47

37,220,559.14

Employee Bonus Payable

44,092.34

58,138.77

Other

7,367,876.67

3,426,617.37

Total

89,478,871.72

91,671,842.03

4.21.1

Defined Benefit Obligations

Particulars

31.03.2081

31.03.2080

Present Value Of Funded Obligations

0

Total Present Value Of Obligations

23,366,283.00

22,126,275.00

Fair Value Of Plan Assets

10,097,931.00

9,720,986.00
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Present Value Of Net Obligations

13,268,352.00

12,405,289.00

Recognized Liability For Defined Benefit Obligations 13,268,352.00 12,405,289.00
4212 Plan Assets
Particulars 31.03.2080
Equity Securities
Government Bonds
Bank Deposit 10,097,931.00
Other - 9,720,986.00
Total 10,097,931.00 9,720,986.00
Actual Return On Plan Assets 1,139,808.00 855,620.00
Actual Return On Plan Assets 855,620.00 523,124.02
421.3 Movement in the Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations
Particulars 31.03.2081 31.03.2080
Defined Benefit Obligations at Shrawan 1 22,126,275.00 22,422,805.00
Actuarial Losses/(GAINS) (6,173,991.00) (9,157,103.00)
Benefits Paid By The Plan (533,809.00) (47,800.00)
Current Service Costs and Interest 7,947,808.00 8,908,373.00
Defined Benefit Obligations at Asar End 23,366,283.00 22,126,275.00
4214 Movement in the Fair Value of Plan Assets
Particulars 31.03.2081 31.03.2080
Fair Value Of Plan Assets At Shrawan 1 9,720,986.00 8,913,166.00
Contributions Paid Into The Plan 0 -
Benefits Paid During The Year (533,809.00) (47,800.00)
Actuarial (Losses) Gains (61,345.00) (124,828.00)
Expected Return On Plan Assets 972,099.00 980,448.00
Fair Value Of Plan Assets At Asar End 10,097,931.00 9,720,986.00
4.21.5 Amount Recognized in Profit or Loss
Particulars 31.03.2081 31.03.2080
Current Service Costs 5,762,670.00 6,472,573.00
Interest On Obligation 2,185,138.00 2,435,800.00
Expected Return On Plan Assets 972,099.00 980,448.00
Total 6,975,709.00 7,927,925.00
421.6 | Amount Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income
Particulars 31.03.2081 31.03.2080
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss (6,112,646.00) (9,032,275.00)
Total (6,112,646.00) (9,032,275.00)
4.21.7: | Actuarial Assumptions
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Amount in NPR
Particulars 31.03.2081 31.03.2080
Discount Rate 8% 10%
Expected Return On Plan Asset 8% 10%
Future Salary Increase 6% 9%
Withdrawal Rate 8% 8%
422 | Debt securities issued
Amount in NPR
Particulars 31.03.2081 31.03.2080
Debt Securities Issued Designated as at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
Debt Securities Issued at Amortized Cost
Total
423 Subordinated Liabilities
Amount in NPR
Particulars 31.03.2081 31.03.2080
Redeemable Preference Shares
Irredeemable Cumulative Preference Shares (Liabilities Component)
Other
Total
4.24 Share capital
Amount in NPR
Particulars 31.03.2081 31.03.2080
Ordinary Shares 246,865,736.29 229,020,618.29
Convertible Preference Shares (Equity Component Only)
Irredeemable Preference Shares (Equity Component Only)
Perpetual Debt (Equity Component Only)
Proposed Bonus Share
Total 246,865,736.29 229,020,618.29
4.24.1: | Ordinary shares
Amount in NPR
Particulars 31.03.2081 31.03.2080
Authorized Capital
40,00,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each
40,00,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each 400,000,000.00 400,000,000.00
Issued capital
Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each 246,865,736.29 229,020,618.29

Subscribed and paid up capital

2468657.36 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each

246,865,736.29

229,020,618.29

Total

246,865,736.29

229,020,618.29

14,95,366.5 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each

17, 61,697. 0638 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each

22,90,206 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each

229,020,618.29

229,020,618.29

Total

229,020,618.29

229,020,618.29
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4242 Ordinary Share Ownership

Particulars

31.03.2081

Percent

Domestic Ownership (Promoter)

Nepal Government

"A" Class Licensed Institutions

Other Licensed Institutions

Other Institutions

Other

70.00 1,727,960.57

172,796,056.50

Domestic Ownership (Public)

Nepal Government

A Class Licensed Institutions

Other Licensed Institutions

Other Institutions

Other

30.00 740,696.79

74,069,679.79

Foreign Ownership Promoter

Foreign Ownership Public

Total

100.00 2,468,657.36

246,865,736.29

share shall be disclosed in above format.

Note : Name of each shareholder along with their holding percentage who holds 0.5% or more

4.25 Reserves

Particulars

31.03.2081

31.03.2080

Statutory General Reserve

53,152,506.83

53,152,506.83

Capital Reserve

Exchange Equalization Reserve

Investment Adjustment Reserve

Corporate Social Responsibility Reserve

1,016,186.48

1,016,186.48

Client Protection Fund

45,085.10

249,085.10

Capital Redemption Reserve

Regulatory Reserve

14,773,590.82

18,267,421.97

Assets Revaluation Reserve

Fair Value Reserve

Dividend Equalization Reserve

Actuarial Gain 14,211,274.30 9,932,422.10

Special Reserve

Debenture Redemption Reserve

Other Reserve

Deferred Tax Reserve 11,592,826.02 1,881,351.43

Staff Training Fund 3,910,805.85 2,291,041.70

Total 98,702,275.39 86,790,015.61
ol aiftfes ArEnRoT Aol “«3 aIffes ufddeat: 20TO/0Tq
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List of Shareholders holding 0.50% or above shares

Type BOID / Holder No. Name Kitta Fraction Percentage
Promoter 1301370000144116 | TULASI RAM KHANAL 51,414.00 0 2.08%
Promoter 1301020000096866 | KAMAL BHANDARI 48,727.00 0 1.97%
Promoter |9 NARAYAN PRASAD GHIMIRE 48724 0.427598795 1.97%
Promoter 1301020000066915 | NARAYAN ADHIKARI 48,724.00 0 1.97%
Promoter 1301070000417387 | SHER BAHADUR CHHETRI 48,724.00 0 1.97%
Promoter 1301090000737022 | MINA KUMARI SHRESTHA 48,723.00 0 1.97%
Promoter 1301260001306046 | RAM KISHAN BISHWAKARMA 48,723.00 0 1.97%
Promoter |2 DHAN KUMARI PATHAK 48719 0.322487121 1.97%
Promoter 1301060000133764 | ANITA SHAH DHUNGANA 48,718.00 0 1.97%
Promoter 1301060000134029 | BHARAT KUMAR SHAH 48,718.00 0 1.97%
Promoter 1301090000226529 | KUSUM RA] GYAWALI 48,716.00 0 1.97%
Promoter | 1301370001472828 | KHADGA BAHADUR RANA 48,716.00 |0 1.97%
Promoter 1 RAMCHANDRA ACHARYA 48222 0.332966876 1.95%
Promoter |26 DIPAK RA] LAMSAL 48222 0.332966876 1.95%
Promoter |3 GOVINDA RAWAL 43838 0.443026058 1.78%
Promoter 1301090003884484 | TEK BAHADUR HITANG 43,838.00 0 1.78%
Promoter 1301260002323346 | TE] BAHADUR KHATRI 43,838.00 0 1.78%
Promoter 12 HEMANTA KUMAR AGRAWAL 42586 0.820355875 1.73%
Promoter 1301090001080540 | SAROJ KUMAR PAUDEL 42,586.00 0 1.73%
Promoter 1301090003527308 | MANOJ UPADHAYA 42,586.00 0 1.73%
Promoter 1301370000117280 | TIKA UPRETI 42,586.00 0 1.73%
Promoter 1301090001053394 | CHIRANJIVI GYAWALI 41,271.00 0 1.67%
Promoter |4 JYOTI ADHIKARI 34069 0.4562847 1.38%
Promoter 1301060001973707 | LAXMAN SUBEDI 34,069.00 0 1.38%
Promoter 1301580000085129 | LAL BAHADUR THAPA 26,301.00 0 1.07%
Promoter 1301060000841459 | BISHNU KUMARI GURUNG 21,920.00 0 0.89%
Promoter 1301570000091891 | NARAYAN BAHADUR BISTA 21,920.00 0 0.89%
Promoter 1301060000118211 | HEM BAHADUR MAHAT 20,675.00 0 0.84%
Promoter 1301090000144334 | PRAMESH ACHARYA 19,501.00 0 0.79%
Promoter 1301100000404045 | LOK NATH NEPAL 19,481.00 0 0.79%
Promoter 1301060002233960 | PRABHAT GYAWALI 19,188.00 0 0.78%
Promoter 1301260000176172 | ROHINI PRASAD MAINALI 18,378.00 0 0.74%
Promoter 1301330000001898 | SADHANA BASNET 18,378.00 0 0.74%
Promoter 1301370001700873 | DURGA PRASAD UPRETI 18,378.00 0 0.74%
Promoter 1301580000275435 | SUDARSHAN POKHREL 18,378.00 0 0.74%
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Type BOID / Holder No. Name Kitta Fraction Percentage
Promoter 1301090000158248 | KESHAV PRASAD SHARMA 18,312.00 0 0.74%
Public 1301060003243345 | KAVITA KHETAN 17,249.00 0 0.70%
Promoter 1301090001031015 | SAKUN AGRAWAL 17,034.00 0 0.69%
Promoter 1301190000021314 | SUSHIL KUMAR ARYAL 17,034.00 0 0.69%
Promoter 1301010000164067 | BINOD PRASAD DAHAL 16,081.00 0 0.65%
Promoter 1301070000039044 | MURARI KARKI 16,081.00 0 0.65%
Promoter 1301090000003805 | BASANTA KHAREL 16,081.00 0 0.65%
Promoter 1301090000056138 | RAM CHANDRA BHANDARI 16,081.00 0 0.65%
Promoter 1301220000120137 | KHIL RA] MAINALI 16,081.00 0 0.65%
Promoter 1301420000071537 | TAR KUMAR DAHAL 16,081.00 0 0.65%
Promoter 1301140000008650 | BISHNU RAJ RAYAMAJHI 15,506.00 0 0.63%
Public 1301770000588994 | REHA INVESTMENT PVT. LTD 13,148.00 0 0.53%
Promoter 1301330000046306 | RITU SHRIWASTAV 12,864.00 0 0.52%
Promoter 1301060001039283 | PRADEEP KUMAR THAPA 12,776.00 0 0.52%
Total 1,537,964.00 | 3.14 62.30%

Khadga Bahadur Rana Khil Raj Mainali Tulasi Ram Khanal Lal Bahadur Thapa CA. Rabin Dhakal

Chairman

Rajan Tiwari
Director

G2l aifffes ATEIRoT Aot

Yam Kumar Khadka

Director Director

Director

uy

Narayan Adhiakari
Acting Chief Executive Officer

Director

Chartered Accountants

Pradip Kumar Yadav
Chief - Finance Officer
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4.26

Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

Particulars

FY 2080/81

FY 2079/80

Contingent Liabilities

Undrawn And Undisbursed Facilities

Capital Commitment

Lease Commitment

Litigation

Others

Total

4.26.1

Capital Commitments

Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the institution but provision has not
been made in financial statements.

Particulars

FY 2080/81

FY 2079/80

Capital Commitments In Relation To Property And Equipment

Approved And Contracted For

Approved But Not Contracted For

Sub Total

Capital Commitments In Relation To Intangible Assets

Approved And Contracted For

Approved But Not Contracted For

Sub Total

Total

4.26.2

Lease Commitments

Particulars

31.03.2080

32.03.2079

Operating Lease Commitments

Future Minimum Lease Payments Under Non Cancellable Operating Lease, Where The
Institution Is Lessee

Not Later Than 1 Year

Later Than 1 Year But Not Later Than 5 Years

Later Than 5 Years

Sub Total

Finance Lease Commitments

Future Minimum Lease Payments Under Non Cancellable Operating Lease, Where
Institution

Not Later Than 1 Year

Later Than 1 Year But Not Later Than 5 Years

Later Than 5 Years

Sub total

Grand Total
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4.26.3 Litigation

The microfinance has not been a party to any litigation claims during the fiscal year 2080.81

4.27 Interest Income
Particulars FY 2080/81 FY 2079/80
Cash And Cash Equivalent 2,099,515.33 8,834,921.35

Due From Nepal Rastra Bank

Placement With Bank And Financial Institutions

Loan And Advances To Financial Institutions

Loans And Advances To Customers 510,951,972.38 | 518,613,780.60
Investment Securities
Loan And Advances To Staff 1,804,351.50 1,962,914.25
Other
Total Interest Income 514,855,839.21

529,411,616.20

428 Interest Expenses

Particulars FY 2080/81 FY 2079/80
Due To Bank And Financial Institutions
Due To Nepal Rastra Bank
Deposits From Customers 84,423,165.12 | 76,830,397.37
Borrowing 249,607,460.31 | 288,165,448.97

Debt Securities Issued

Subordinated Liabilities

Other (On Lease Liabililities) 3,349,850.32 4,579,741.86

Total Interest Expense 337,380,475.75 | 369,575,588.20
4.29 Fees and Commission Income

Particulars FY 2080/81 FY 2079/80

Loan Administration Fees

Service Fees 32,514,248.51 | 34,066,085.22

Commitment Fees

Card Issuance Fees

Prepayment And Swap Fees

Remittance Fees

Brokerage Fees

Other Fees And Commission Income 10,594,069.71 2,615,607.83

Total Fees and Commission Income 43,108,318.22 | 36,681,693.05

4.30 Fees and Commission Expense

Particulars FY 2080/81 FY 2079/80

Brokerage

ATM Mangement Fees

Visa Master Card Fees

et aiftfs et el L\ aIfffes Yfadgel: 20T0/0TA
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Guarantee Commission Fees

Brokerage

DD/ TT/ Swift Fees

Remittance Fees and Commission

Other Fees and Commission Expense

Total Fees and Commission

4.31 Net Trading Income

Particulars FY 2080/81 FY 2079/80

Changes In Fair Value Of Trading Assets

Gain/Loss On Disposal Of Trading Assets

Interest Income On Trading Assets

Dividend Income On Trading Assets

Gain/Loss Foreign Exchange Transaction

Other

Net Trading Income

4.32 Other Operating Income

Particulars FY 2080/81 FY 2079/80

Foreign Exchange Revaluation Gain

Gain/Loss On Sale Of Investment Securities

Fair Value Gain/Loss On Investment Properties

Dividend On Equity Instruments

Gain/Loss On Sale Of Property And Equipment

Gain/Loss On Sale Of Investment Property

Operating Lease Income

Gain/Loss On Sale Of Gold And Silver

Other

Total

4.33 Impairment Charge/ (Reversal) for Loan and Other Losses

Particulars FY 2080/81 FY 2079/80

Impairment Charge/(Reversal) On Loan And Advances To B/Fis

Impairment Charge/(Reversal) On Loan And Advances To Customer 13,058,408.95 (11,633,092.46)

Impairment Charge/(Reversal) On Financial Investment

Impairment Charge/(Reversal) On Placement With Banks And Financial Institutions

Impairment Charge/(Reversal) On Property And Equipment

Impairment Charge/(Reversal) On Goodwill And Intangible Assets

Impairment Charge/(Reversal) On Investment Properties

Total 13,058,408.95 (11,633,092.46)
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4.34 Personnel Expense
Particulars FY 2080/81 FY 2079/80
Salary 66,551,747.97 72,035,822.20
Allowances 56,860,318.38 61,187,712.80
Gratuity Expense 6,975,709.00 7,927,925.00
Provident Fund 6,580,233.00 7,154,473.60
Training & Development Expense 4,214,796.26 4,680,598.32
Leave Encashment 8,054,096.76 10,725,163.23
Medical 115,200.00 115,200.00
Insurance
Employees Incentive
Cash-Settled Share-Based Payments
Pension Expense
Finance Expense Under NFRSs -296,068.42 -175,290.64
Other Expenses Related To Staff
Subtotal 149,056,032.95 163,651,604.51
Employees Bonus -
Grand total 149,056,032.95 163,651,604.51

4.35 Other Operating Expense
Particulars FY 2080/81 FY 2079/80
Directors' Fee
Directors' Expense
Auditors' Remuneration 226,000.00 226,000.00
Other Audit Related Expense 235622.33 132,011.20
Professional And Legal Expense -
Technical Service Expenses
Office Administration Expense 49,429,308.45 52,930,646.81
Operating Lease Expense
Operating Expense Of Investment Properties
Commision & Discount
Corporate Social Responsibility Expense
Client Protection Expenses
Onerous Lease Provisions
Other
Total 49,890,930.78 53,288,658.01

Khadgé }l?ghadur Rana Khil Raj Mainali Tulasi Ram Khanal  Lal Bah.adur Thapa For, Rab(i:r?ll)llzlzzia? zllz:lall:aslsociates,
airman Director Director Director Chartered Accountants
Rajan Tiwari Yam Kumar Khadka Narayan Adhiakari Pradip Kumar Yadav
Director Director Acting Chief Executive Officer Chief - Finance Officer
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4.35.1 Office Administration Expense |

Amount in NPR
Particulars FY 2080/81 FY 2079/80
Water And Electricity 1,305,372.36 1,337,876.69
Office Rent Expenses - -
Repair And Maintenance
(A) Building
(B) Vehicle 239,820.91 190,200.50
(C) Computer And Accessories 69,928.50
(D) Office Equipment And Furniture 17,708.83 33,140.00
(E) Other 63,139.00 43,280.00
Insurance 13,138,335.99 11,336,653.74
Postage, Telex, Telephone, Fax 9,428,398.73 9,240,334.80
Printing And Stationery 1,630,733.98 1,783,811.63
News Paper, Books And Journals 10,700.00
Advertisement
Donation
Service Charge Expenses 1,015,852.28 5,828,908.37
Deposit And Loan Guarantee Premium
Travel Allowance And Expense 2,364,520.58 2,919,633.66
Computer Supplies Expenses 1,243,578.00 1,208,390.00
Loan Processing Fee Expenses 172,500.00 500,000.00
Hospitality Expenses 537,718.50 431,392.29
Annual/Special General Meeting Expense 268,372.44 176,740.64
Bod Meeting Expenses 798,478.26 836,606.66
Others
(A) Fuel Expenses 3,452,505.00 3,764,994.65
(B) Registration & Renewal Expenses 41,000.00 47,500.00
(C) Misc.Expenses 469,064.49 508,225.01
(D) Transportation Expenses 14,440.00 9,805.00
(E) Annual Expenses -
(F) Wages 9,303,784.46 9,409,007.81
(G) Share Registarar Expenses
(H) Legal Expense 11,200.00 31,500.00
(I) CIB Charge Expense 6,300.00 3,300.00
(J) Other Committee Allowance 227,000.00 183,000.00
(K) Low cost item Expenses 196,766.60 247,760.00
(L) Office Expenses -
(M) Account Closing Expense 327,500.00 346,396.00
(N) Bank Charges -
(O) Technical Service Expenses 258,675.00 1,248,249.36
(P) Tax Expense -
(Q) Consultancy Expenses -
(R) Remmittance Expenses 2,165.00 2,735.00
(S) Member Security Rahat Expenses -
(T) Other Committee Expenses 10,935.00 15,420.00
(U) Other Expenses 2,813,514.54 1,235,085.00
(W) Csr Expenses -
(X) Share Issue Expenses -
Total 49,429,308.45 52,930,646.81
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Notes To Financial Statements
For The Year Ending 31 Ashadh, 2081

4.36

Depreciation & Amortization

Amount in NPR

Particulars

FY 2080/81

FY 2079/80

Depreciation On Property And Equipment

17,596,723.45

18,384,349.24

Depreciation On Investment Property

Amortization Of Intangible Assets

Total

17,596,723.45

18,384,349.24

4.37

Non Operating Income

Amount in NPR

Particulars

FY 2080/81

FY 2079/80

Recovery of Loan Written Off

Other Income

Total

4.38

| Non Operating Expense

Amount in NPR

Particulars

FY 2080/81

FY 2079/80

"Loan Written Off

"

Redundancy Provision

Expense Of Restructuring

Total

4.39

Income Tax Expense

Amount in NPR

Particulars

FY 2080/81

FY 2079/80

Current Tax Expense

Current Year

Adjustments For Prior Years

4,949,951.40

Deferred Tax Expense

(4,509,096.15)

(6,996,639.92)

Origination And Reversal Of Temporary Differences

-4,509,096.15

(6,996,639.92)

Changes In Tax Rate

Recognition Of Previously Unrecognized Tax Losses

Total Income Tax Expense

440,855.20

(6,996,639.92)

4.39.1:

Reconciliation of Tax Expense and Accounting Profit

Amount in NPR

Particulars

FY 2080/81

31.03.2080

Profit Before Tax

Tax Amount At Tax Rate Of.......... %

Add: Tax Effect Of Expenses That Are Not Deductible For Tax Purpose

Less: Tax Effect On Exempt Income

Add/Less: Tax Effect On Other Items

Total Income Tax Expense

Effective Tax Rate
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Unnati Sahakarya Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
FY 2080.81

Computation of Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities

Particulars 2081.03.31 2080.03.31

Carrying Amount

Loans and Advances to Customers

3,614,511,657.83

3,345,014,433.09

Interest Receivable 14,419,137.47 8,859,123.56
Loans and Advances to Staffs 22,027,765.63 18,043,515.01
Deferred Staff Costs 1,641,993.97 880,508.66
Fixed Assets Except Land & Capital WIP 35,081,698 52,011,076

Fixed Assets - Land

Intangible Assets

Investment Property

Deferred Income - Current & Non-Current

Other Long Term Employee Benefit Liability - Leave

(19,731,791)

(33,881,754)

Gratuity Payable (10,768,352) (22,126,275)
Unused Tax Losses

Lease Liability (27,394,866) (37,220,559)
Total Carrying Amount (A) 3,629,787,243 3,331,580,068

Tax Base

Loans and Advances to Customers

3,614,511,658

3,345,014,433

Interest Receivable 14,419,137 -

Staff Loans 23,669,760 18,043,515
Depreciable Assets including Intangibles 35,081,698 52,011,076
Right of Use Assets (19,252,255) (53,763,875)
Land

Deferred Income

Provision for Leave & Gratuity

Total Tax Base (B) 3,668,429,998 3,361,305,149
Taxable/(Deductible Temporary Difference) (A-B) (38,642,755) (29,725,080)
Applicable Tax Rate 30% 30%
Deferred Tax Liability (Assets) (11,592,826) (8,917,524)
Opening Deferred Tax Liability (Assets) (8,917,524) (9,068,172)
Deferred Tax Expenses/(Income) (2,675,302) (4,249,509)
Deferred Tax Expenses/(Income) - Recognized in Profit or Loss (4,509,096) (6,996,640)
Deferred Tax Expenses/(Income) - Recognized in OCI 1,833,794 2,747,131

Deferred Tax Expenses/(Income) - Recognized in Equity

Actuarial (Gains) and Losses

(6,112,646.00)

(9,157,103.00)

GRil aiftfes ATenRoT 7ot %R

aiffas Ufidgel: 0TO/0TA




fates

qerr

Agiaa fadm

I qgH

JMED-I5N aidioidal ergfad Jar”

"Client-Friendly Innovative Microfinance Service

ited

.

mi

ESIEGER IRl

ATl U S{helTE “E1 ikl

Sahakarya Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha L

i

Unnat

7 ®

I921JQ ddURUI] - JATYD
Aepex rewrny] dipeig

SJUBIUNOIDY PaIdlIey))
‘59JBID0SSY pUe [exe(J UIqey 10
[eeyqg uqey 'vO

I901JO 2ATINDAXT JOIYD) Sunpdy
HIEeeIYpPY UeAereN

1030211
edey], mpeyeq [e1

1030211(]
[eueyy] wey I1se[ny,

1010911
eXpeyy] Jewny weg

1030211(J
I[eureIN (e Iy

1030211(]
LIemI], uefey

UBWLITRYD)
euey Inpeyeq eSpeyd]

9L'8€8TLECLI9 | 8GOV ESITLET | LT'618B00FTIT | €0°TI098YTS6T | €TLO6S TITTOLT | T8'LYSST6IT | €6'LIEFSITIE sanIqer] yuawsag | (w)
00'6€8TLECLIO | €0'68S°CSITLET | LT'6I8BOTFIT | €0°T90°98€ETS6° | TO'COS TITTOCT | T8 LVPS8TOCIT | €6'LICTSITIE s1assy JuaWsas | (1)
- s3assy JO Juauriredwy | ()
:SW2)] YseD)-UON
[eLIRN PO | ()
(sso1)/
TEETTTIEST | (§5%96°055°S0T) TV'759°909°C 08'858°958°0L 1L°L€0°T8ETE LSYILVELT LEVLYT]TTL 1oId Juswsas | (Y)
uonesnIoury
$5°€68°998% 7S'SST9ELT €6°00SVLI TE61£°99¢°T 69°010°99¢°T 79°1€0°0S OV'SLLELT puy uopewaidaq | (8)
IT°LLTT9SGLT TTTISH LIS TS GEESTI8LT CTI'8LICTTTL 0%'8%0°8¥ L cE 61°96LF8LT €8°'679°9SHCT | onuoAdy IsaIul 1N | (§)
6T°L68FV60FEY | S89LVLO96YT | LSTI6ETSTT | S860% CHPc61 I8°T0T69T9ET | S9°€1S909TT 9T I8¥S¥9°0¢ asuadxy 3sa1yu | (3)
0€7LI9S9°608 | LO0'8T6TLITOE | TT990°SOETT | L6'L85°G99°G9T ITISTLI00LT | ¥8°60€T6EST 66°0€TTOT Y oNUAANY Isa1u] | (P)
08750825 L9S | (9S°79€6L0°66C) | 69°000°GTLOT | €O0'SETISETSY | SH6TH0LS96T | 9T 0P I¥6°8E €0'8¥7°610°8S anudA PN | (9)
SONUIANY
(05°€%9°09£°2€9) | (0S'€EP909LLEY) JuowSasrau] | ()
s1owroysn))
[euIaIxy
0€'869°88T°S0T‘T | ¥6°08T°T89'8EE | 69°000°GTL0OT | €O'GETTSETSY | SV6TV0LS96T | 9T ¥OF I¥6°8E €0'8¥77610°8S WOL] SINU2ANY, | ()
ysopeiq ysapeid ysopeiq ysapeiq ysapeid
[el0L, pajeco[eun | wpysedmpng TUIquIn’| USoypeN TeuIey] Dyepuen) sTemonted | NS
uoTyewIOfu] JUaw3as "0F F

180T ‘YPBYSY [€ SUIPUY JedX Y, 10,
SJUdUId)E)S [BIDURUL] O], S9JON

pajIuI| eyjsueS eAmig eniqnyse| elreyeyes neuun)

Q20TO/0T9

aifas ufdcet

L

G2l aifffes ATEIRoT Aot



It ggh dgfaa fa<ia der fafdse

Unnati Sahakarya Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
AT T SehellE “5” ARl TSITSTATATT HEAT

&~ aidloidal ergfaa Jar”
"Client-Friendly Innovative Microfinance Service"

Unnati Sahakarya Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Notes To Financial Statements
For The Year Ending 31 Ashadh, 2081

4.41. Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

(a) Revenue

Total Revenues For Reportable Segments 1,205,288,698.30

Other Revenues -

Elimination Of Intersegment Revenues

Unallocated Amounts (637,760,643.50)

Entity’S Revenues 567,528,054.80
(b) Profit or loss

Total Profit Or Loss For Reportable Segments 120,863,187.87

Other Profit Or Loss -

Elimination Of Intersegment Profits -

Unallocated Amounts: (105,550,964.55)

Profit Before Income Tax 15,312,223.32
(0) Assets

Total Assets For Reportable Segments 3,801,719,249.97

Intersegment Assets

Unallocated Amounts 2,871,653,589.03

Entity’s Assets 6,673,372,839.00
(d) Liabilities

Total Liabilities For Reportable Segments

3,801,719,344.18

Intersegment Liabilities

Unallocated Amounts

2,871,653,494.58

Entity’S Liabilities

6,673,372,838.76

5. Informatio

n about products and services

Revenue from each type of product and services described in point no. 1(b) above

(a)

(b)

(9

6. Informatio

n about geographical areas

Revenue from following geographical areas

(a) Domestic 1,205,288,698.30
Gandaki Pradesh 58,019,448.03
Karnali Pradesh 38,941,404.16
Madhesh Pradesh 296,570,429.45
Lumbini Pradesh 452,351,135.03
Sudurpashchim Pradesh 20,725,000.69
Unallocated 338,681,280.94
Intersegment Revenue (637,760,643.50)
Foreign -

(b) Total 1,843,049,341.80
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Unnati Sahakarya Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Computation of Income Tax and reconcilation of Profit

FY 2080/81
Particulars Amount As per Income | Amount as per NFRS Difference
Tax
1. Income
Interest Income 514,855,839.21 514,855,839.21 -
Fees and Commission Income 43,108,318.22 43,108,318.22 -
Reversal Of Impairment (13,058,408.95) (13,058,408.95)
Inclusion due to change in Accounting | -
Policy- PY Accrued Income
Total Income 544,905,748.48 544,905,748.48 -
2. Expenses to be deducted
Interest Expense 334,030,625.43 337,380,475.75 (3,349,850.32)
Personnel Expenses 136,224,471.04 149,056,032.95 (12,831,561.91)
Depreciation and Amortization 4,866,893.54 17,596,723.45 (12,729,829.91)
Repair and Maintenance 390,597.24 390,597.24 -
Other Office Expenses 62,675,876.54 49,890,930.78 12,784,945.76
Employee Bonus - - -
Total Expenses 538,188,463.79 554,314,760.17 (16,126,296.38)
Assessable Income 6,717,284.69 (9,409,011.69) 16,126,296.38
Less: PY Loss 18,560,255.67
Less: PY Loss Due to Merger 1,045,195.14
Taxable Income (12,888,166.12)
Income Tax Liability -

Khadga Bahadur Rana Khil Raj Mainali
Chairman Director
Rajan Tiwari Yam Kumar Khadka
Director Director
&Rl aiftiep ATerReoT et

Tulasi Ram Khanal

Director
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Acting Chief Executive Officer
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Lal Bahadur Thapa
Director

CA. Rabin Dhakal
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Unnati Sahakarya Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Notes To Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st Ashadh 2081

1.Reporting Entity

Unnati Sahakarya Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited ('the Microfinance') is domiciled and incorporated in Nepal as a D Class licensed
financial institution as per Bank and Financial Institution Act, 2063. The microfinance is a limited liability company registered in
Office of the Company Registrar on 2070.09.17. The microfinance obtained license to carry out the financial transactions on 2071.06.13
from Nepal Rastra Bank.

The microfinance and Sahakarya Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited merged, starting joint transactions on 2077.03.26. Initially the
microfinance was provided with license to carry out financial transactions within 10 districts on western region of Nepal. Up to end
of the financial year 2080/81 the micro finance has expanded its work area to 28 districts with 82 branches.

The Microfinance having its shares listed on Nepal Stock Exchange with trading code “USLB” after issuing its shares to the general
public. The microfinance has been promoted by several reputed persons. The Registered Office of the microfinance is at Siddhartha
Nagar, 12 Shantinagar, Rupendehi.

Being D Class licensed institution, major activities of the microfinance include deprived sector lending under the group guarantee
without collateral in order to enhance economic and social factors of the members. Also, the microfinance provides additional
microenterprise loan to its members within the limit as prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank from time to time. The major sources of
fund are member savings, loan from other BFIs and Equity holders’ fund.

2. Basis of Preparation

2.1 Statement of Compliance
The financial statements of the Microfinance, have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standard
(NFRS) issued by Accounting Standard Board (ASB) of Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal. The financial statements
are based on the ormats mandated by the Directive No. 4 of The Unified Directives, 2079 as made applicable by the Nepal
Rastra Bank.
These financial statements for the year ended 31st Ashadh, 2081 are the second financial statements of the microfinance
prepared in accordance with NFRS.
Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to conform with the current year’s classification
/disclosures.

2.2 Reporting Period and Approval of Financial Statements
The microfinance follows Nepalese financial year based on Nepali calendar starting from 1st Shrawan and ending on
last day of Ashadh.
These financial statements consist two Statement of Financial Position as of 31st Ashadh 2081 and 31st Ashadh 2080. The
microfinance has also presented two Statement of Profit or Loss and Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, two
statements of Changes in Equity and two Statements of Cash Flows for the year ended as of 31st Ashadh 2081 and 31st
Ashadh 2080 along with the necessary and related notes.
The Board of Directors acknowledges the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of financial statements as per
the provision of The Companies Act, 2063.
These financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on its 2081/08/18 meeting held on 226 and
recommended for the approval by shareholders in the Annual General Meeting.

2.3 Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR) which is the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the Microfinance operates. The financial information presented has been rounded off to nearest rupee except where
otherwise stated.

2.4 Use of Estimates, Assumptions and Judgments

The The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions in the
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2.8
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application of accounting policies that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may
differ from these estimates. Continuous evaluation is done on the estimation and judgments based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized prospectively in current and future periods.

Changes in Accounting Policies

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods except where deviations have been explicitly mandated by
the applicable accounting standards presented in the financial statements.

New Standards Issued but not yet effective

IFRS-9, Financial Instrument which replaces the existing standard relating to Financial Instrument which provide for the
expected credit loss model for the impairment of the financial assets. This statement is neither issued nor made applicable by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN). Thus, the financial statement is recognized, measured, presented and
disclosed using  NAS-32 Financial Instrument- Presentation, NAS-39 Financial Instrument-Recognition and Measurements
and NFRS-7 Financial Instrument- Disclosure.

New Standards and Interpretation not adopted

IFRS-9 has been has been complied up on except on the calculation of impairment as carve out has been provided by
the ICAN.

Other amendments in existing standards and interpretations issued by IASB are not adopted as those are not notified
by ICAN.

Discounting

non-current assets and liabilities are discounted whenever the discounting is material and if required by the NFRS.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

3.1 Basis of Measurement
The Financial Statements of Microfinance have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the following items:
Items Basis of Measurement
Retirement Benefit Present value of defined benefit
Obligation Obligation less the fair value of the plan assets
Plan Assets Measured at fair Value
3.2 Basis of Consolidation
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method in line with the NFRS 03 "Business Combination".
The consideration transferred in the acquisition and identifiable net assets acquired are measured at fair value. Any goodwill
that arises is tested annually for impairment. Any gain on a bargain purchase is recognized in profit or loss immediately.
Transaction costs are expensed as incurred, except if they are related to the issue of debt or equity securities.
The microfinance doesn’t have any other entity for consolidation of financial statements. Investment in shares made by the
microfinance are financial investments.
3.3 Cash & Cash Equivalent

The cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cashflow statement include cash in hand, balances with banks and financial
institutions, money at call and short notice and highly liquid financial assets with original maturity of three months or
less from the acquisition date that are subject to and insignificant risk of changes in their fair values and are used by the
microfinance in the management of its short-term commitments.
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Cash and Cash equivalents includes cash in hands, deposits with BFIs and other short-term investments with original
maturities of three months or less. Details of Cash and Cash Equivalents are presented under Note 4.1.

3.4 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

3.4.1. Recognition

The Microfinance recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value on initial recognition. Transaction costs in
relation to financial assets and financial liabilities, other than those carried at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), are
added to the fair value on initial recognition. Transaction costs in relation to financial assets and financial liabilities which
are carried at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), are charged to the statement of profit and loss.

3.4.2. Classification and Measurement
The financial assets and liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair value on the basis of business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.
3.4.2.1.Financial assets
Financial assets are classified under three categories as required by NFRS 9, namely:
a. Measured at amortized cost:

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate (‘EIR’) method less impairment, if any. The amortization of EIR and loss arising from
impairment, if any is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

b. Measured at fair value through OCI:

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both, selling financial assets and
collecting contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income
(OCI).

Equity Instrument which are not held for trading and initially recognized as held for trading for which the Microfinance
makes an irrevocable election to carry the changes in fair value of the instrument through OCI are measured at Fair
Value through other Comprehensive Income.

¢. Measured at fair value through profit or loss:

The Microfinance classifies the financials assets as fair value through profit or loss if they are held for trading or
designated at fair value through profit or loss.

Any other financial asset not classified as either amortized cost or FVOCI, is classified as FVTPL.

3.4.2.2. Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified under three categories as required by NFRS 9, namely:
a. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction cost is
directly attributable to the acquisition are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred. Subsequent changes
in fair value are recognized at profit or loss.

b. Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost:

All financial liabilities other than measured at fair value though profit or loss are classified as subsequently measured
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at amortized cost using effective interest method.
3.4.3. De-recognition

The Microfinance derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire or it transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the asset.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

3.4.4. Determination of Fair Value

The fair value of a financial instrument is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The Microfinance follows three levels
of the fair-value-hierarchy are described below:

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets;

Level 2: Significant inputs to the fair value measurement are directly or indirectly observable or valuations of quoted
for similar instrument in active markets or quoted prices for identical or similar instrument in inactive markets; and

Level 3: Significant inputs to the fair value measurement are unobservable.

Investment in Unquoted Equity Instrument are carried at cost as the market price of such shares could not be ascertained
with certainty at the reporting date.

3.4.5. Impairment

The Microfinance reviews its individually significant loans and advances at each reporting date to assess whether an
impairment loss should be provided in the Statement of Profit or Loss. The Management’s judgement is extensively
used in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the impairment loss. These
estimates are based on assumptions about a number of factors and hence actual results may differ, resulting in future
changes to the provisions made.

The individual impairment provision applies to financial assets evaluated individually for impairment and is based on

Management’s best estimate of the present value of the future cash flows that are expected to be received. In estimating

these cash flows, Management makes judgements about the number of factors including a borrower’s financial situation

and the net realizable value of any underlying collateral. Each impaired asset is assessed on its merits to estimate the

recoverable amount of cash flows. A collective impairment provision is established for:

o groups of homogeneous loans and advances and investment securities which are held-to-maturity, that

o  are not considered individually significant; and

o groups of assets that are individually significant but that were not found to be individually impaired.

o The collective impairment is carried using the statistical modelling such as historical trends of probability of
defaults, timings of recoveries, and current economic and market conditions which may warrant for the loss being
greater than the suggested by the historical trends.

For the purpose of collective assessment of impairment Microfinance has categorized assets into following broad
products as follows:

o Business Loan

o Agriculture Loan

o Other Loan

Carveout adopted for assessment of impairment charge
The Microfinance has opted to apply carveout on impairment of loans and receivables. Accordingly, individual and collective
impairment loss amount calculated as per NFRS is compared with the impairment provision required under NRB directive
no. 2, higher of the amount derived from these measures is taken as impairment loss for loans and receivables.

Comparison of Impairment as per NFRS and NRB:

Particulars F/Y 2080-81 F/Y 2079-80

LLP as per NRB Directives 78,930,326.01 65,871,917.06

Impairment as per NFRS 78,930,326.01 65,871,917.06
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Impact of Covid on LLP

For the fiscal year, NRB through circular dated 2078.04.11 has mandated the microfinances to record additional provision
of 0.30% on pass loan making it to a total of 1.30%. In compliance with this provision, the microfinance has  recorded an
additional provision on pass loan as on Ashadh end 2080.

3.5 Trading Assets
Financial assets are classified as trading assets (held for trading) if they have been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term, or form part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is
evidence of a recent pattern of short- term profit taking. They are recognized on trade date, when the Microfinance enters into
contractual arrangements with counterparties, and are normally derecognized when sold. They are initially measured at fair
value, with transaction costs taken to profit or loss. Subsequent changes in their fair values are recognized in profit or loss in ‘Net
trading income’ However, the Microfinance does not have such assets to be recognized as trading assets as on Ashadh end 2081.

3.6 Derivative Assets and Derivative Liabilities
Derivative instruments include transactions like interest rate swap, currency swap, forward foreign exchange contract etc. held
for trading as well as risk management purposes. Derivative financial instruments are initially measured at fair value on the
contract date and are subsequently re-measured to fair value at each reporting date. However, the Microfinance does not have
such instruments as on Ashadh end 2081.

3.7 Property, Plant and Equipment
Recognition and measurement: Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any. Cost includes expenditures directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.

Depreciation: The Microfinance depreciates property, plant and equipment following Written Down Value method applying

the Depreciation rates prescribed by Income Tax Act, 2058. The microfinance has used method prescribed by Income Tax Act
2058 for the computation of depreciation. Depreciation has not been calculated as per NFRS due to unavailability of fixed assets
register with details of addition and disposal of assets. The rates used for depreciation of assets for the current and comparative
period of significant items of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Type of Asset Useful Life Depreciation Rate

Buildings 58-59 years 5%

Computer & Accessories 10-11 Years 25%

Vehicles 13-14 Years 20%

Furniture & Fixtures 10-11 Years 25%

Equipment & Others — Equipment 10-11 Years 25%

Other Assets 10-11 Years 25%

Intangible Assets Amortized Over 5 years on Straight
Line Basis

The Microfinance adopts cost model for entire class of Property, Plant and Equipment. It has not measured any Property Plant
and Equipment at revaluation model and at fair value. The items of Property, Plant and Equipment are measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation of newly acquired assets is charged based upon the date of invoice and assets having acquisition cost less than NPR.
2,000 have been written down as an expense for the period in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.8 Goodwill/Intangible Assets
Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired in Business Combination is recognized
as goodwill. Goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually,
or more frequently, if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
Intangible assets are recognized separately from goodwill when they are separable or arise from contractual or other legal
rights, and their fair value can be measured reliably. These intangible assets are recognized at historical cost less impairment /
amortization over their estimated useful life.
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3.9 Investment Property
Investment properties include land or land and buildings other than those classified as property and equipment and non-current
assets held for sale. It includes assets which are held for capital appreciation or for rental to others or held for undetermined future
use. It also includes land, land and building acquired by the Microfinance as non-banking assets but not sold as on the reporting
date. However, the Microfinance does not have Investment Property as on Ashadh end.

3.10 Income Tax
Tax expenses comprises of current tax and deferred tax.
Financial Statements were prepared on first time adoption of NFRS on Fiscal Year 2078.79 and income taxes for the FY 2080.81are
paid on the basis of Income Tax Act 2058 and NFRS financial statements.

3.10.1. Current Tax
Current tax is the income tax expense recognized in the statement of Profit or Loss, except to the extent it relates to
items recognized directly in equity or OCI in which case it is recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income.
Current tax is the amounts expected or paid to Inland Revenue Department in respect of the current year, using the tax
rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted on the reporting date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of prior years.

Current Tax Calculation as per Income Tax Act, 2058

Particulars ‘ Amount (RS)
1. Income
Interest Income 514,855,839.21
Fees and Commission Income 52,672,215.59
Reversal Of Impairment (13058408.95)
Inclusion due to change in Accounting Policy- PY | -
Accrued Income
Total Income 544,905,748.48
2. Expenses to be deducted
Interest Expense 334,030,625.43
Personnel Expenses 136,224,471.04
Depreciation and Amortization 4,866,893.54
Repair and Maintenance 390,597.24
Other Office Expenses 62,675,876.54
Employee Bonus -
Total Expenses 538,188,463.79
Assessable Income 596,462,608.02
Assessable Income 6,717,284.69
Less: PY Loss 18,560,255.67
Less: PY Loss Due to Merger 1,045,195.14
Taxable Income (12,888,166.12)
Income Tax Liability -
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3.10.2 Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
balance sheet and the amounts attributed to such assets and liabilities for tax purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilized.
Deferred tax is calculated using the tax rates expected to apply in the periods in which the assets will be realized or the
liabilities settled, based on tax rates and laws enacted, or substantively enacted, by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are offset when they arise in the same tax reporting group and relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority, and when the group has a legal right to offset.

3.11 Deposit, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities
3.11.1. Deposits:

Deposits by members and public depositors are initially recognized at fair value, plus for those financial liabilities not at
fair value through profit and loss. The transaction price is considered as the fair value for measuring the deposits.

3.11.2 Debt Securities Issued
Debt Securities are initially measured at the fair value less incremental direct cost and subsequently at their amortized cost
using effective interest method except where the bank designates liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. However,
the Microfinance does not have such Debt Securities as on Ashadh end 2081.

3.11.3 Subordinate Liabilities
These are the liabilities subordinated, at the event of winding up, to claims of depositors, debt securities issued and other
creditors. It shall include redeemable preference shares, subordinated notes issued, borrowings etc. During the reporting
period the Microfinance did not have any such liabilities.

3.12 Provisions, other Liabilities and Contingent Liabilities
A provision is recognized, if as a result of a past event, the Microfinance has a present legal or constructive obligation that can
be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. The amount
recognized is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date, taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation at that date. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate and are reversed if there is no probability of outflow of resources.
The contingent liabilities are the liabilities for which it is uncertain as to whether it will become an obligation as it depends on
the occurrence of an uncertain future event. These amounts are off-balance sheet items and are disclosed when there is a possible
obligation that may but probably will not require an outflow of resources.
A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Microfinance from a contract are
lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The Microfinance does not have such contingent
liabilities and onerous contracts as on Ashadh end 2081.

3.13 Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to Microfinance and the consideration
can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria shall also be met for revenue recognition:

3.13.1 Interest Income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, interest bearing financial assets classified as available- for-sale and
financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss, interest income or expense is recorded using the Effective
Interest Rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life
of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
liability. The calculation of effective interest rate includes all charges and fee paid or received that are integral part of the effective
interest only if considered necessary. Such a charges are not amortized over the life of the loan and advances as the income so
recognized closely approximates the income that would have derived under effective interest method and are recognized directly
in statement of profit and loss.
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The interest income recognized in the statement of profit and loss includes the following:

o Interest income on financial assets measured at amortized cost calculated on an effective interest rate method, except
for impaired loans and advances. These financial assets include investment in government securities, investment in
NRB Bond and deposit instruments, reverse repos, inter-bank lending, etc.

o Asper carve out on NAS 39 Para 9, the Microfinance has not included the fees paid or received in loans and advances
that are immaterial or impracticable to determine reliably the effective interest rate and have recognized them directly
as revenue in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

+  Asper carve out on NAS 39 AG 93, the Microfinance has applied the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset unless the financial asset is written off either partially or fully.

o Interest on investment securities measured at fair value is calculated on effective interest rate.

o Income on discounted instruments like bills purchased, documents negotiation is recognized over the

o period of discounting on accrual basis using effective interest rate.

o Interestincome on all trading assets is considered to be incidental to the Group’s trading operations and are presented
together with all other changes in fair value of trading assets and liabilities in net trading income.

o Interest income accrued but not received from Performing Loan and Advance till date has been recognized in the
current year interest income

o Interest Suspense on loans other than bad loans are transferred to regulatory reserve after providing for adjustment to
Bonus (10%) and taxes (30%).

3.13.2 Fee and Commission Income.
Fees and commissions are generally recognized on an accrual basis when the service has been provided.

3.13.3 Dividend Income.
Dividend income received from equity shares is recognized in the books when the right to receive the dividend is
established.

3.13.4. Net Trading Income.
Net Trading Income includes all gains and losses from changes in fair value, related capital gain/loss and dividend from
financial assets ‘Held for Trading’ Trading expenses are deducted from the trading income and the amount net of trading
expenses are disclosed in statement of profit and loss.
3.13.5 Net Income from Other Financial Instrument at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss.
Net income from other financial instrument measured at fair value through Profit or Loss includes all gains/(losses) raised
from the revaluation of financial instrument at fair value.
3.13.6. Grant Income
Grant income are recognized in Income statement on a systematic basis over the period in which the microfinance has
recognized the expense for the related cost for which the grants are intended to compensate. In the case of grants related
to assets, Deferred Grant Income has been recognized. The amount equal to the depreciation on the Grant Assets is
charged to grant income for the period.
3.14 Interest Expenses
Interest expense on all financial liabilities including deposits is recognized in statement of profit or loss using effective interest
rate method. The Microfinance uses ASB carve- outs as mentioned above and treat coupon rate as effective interest rate.

3.15 Employee Benefits
3.15.1 Short term employee benefits
The Microfinance’s short term employee benefits mainly include wages, salaries, allowances, socials security expenses,
bonuses as provided in the law and other employee related expenses. Short term employee benefits are ~ measured on
an undiscounted basis and are charged to statement of profit and loss as and when the related service is provided.
3.15.2. Post-Employment employee benefits
3.15.2.1 Defined Contribution Plans
Post-Employment benefits plan under which the microfinance pays a fixed contribution to a separate entity
and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay future amounts are categorized under defined contribution
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plans. The contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized in profit or loss as and when the services
are rendered by employees.
Employee Provident Fund
Employee provident fund is the defined contribution plan opt by the microfinance. Complying with The Labor Act,
2074, the microfinance contributes 10% of the Basic salary and Grade Amount of all the employees to the Approved
Retirement Fund, established by the Global IME bank. The Microfinance has no further obligations under these plans
beyond its periodic contributions.
Any unpaid contribution is recorded as a liability under ‘Other Liabilities’ in Note 4.21.

3.15.2.2. Defined Benefit Plans
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The
Microfinance’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating
the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in current and prior periods.
That benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Any unrecognized past service costs and the fair value
of any plan assets are deducted. The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on corporate bonds, that
have maturity dates approximating the terms of the Microfinance's obligation and that are denominated in the
currency in which the benefit is expected to be paid. The defined benefit obligation is recognized on the basis of
the report of qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. The Microfinance recognizes all actuarial
gains and losses arising from defined benefit plans immediately in OCI and all expenses related to defined
benefits plans in employee benefit are expensed in profit and loss account. When the calculation results in a
potential asset for the group, the recognized assets are limited to the present value of economic benefits available
in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. To calculate
the present value of economic benefits consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding requirements.
Measurements of the net defined benefit liability comprise actuarial gains and losses. The return on plan
assets (excluding interest income) and the effect of the assets ceiling (if any excluding interest) are recognized
immediately in OCI. The Microfinance determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined liability
(assets) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the
beginning of the annual period to the then net defined benefits liability (assets), taking into account any changes
in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contribution and benefits payments.
Net interest expenses and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognized as personal expenses
in Statement of profit and Loss.
Gratuity:
As in case of the staffs recruited earlier to the enforcement of new labor act, gratuity benefits have been provisioned as
per the Employees byelaw of the microfinance as below:
a. To the employee serving more than 5 years to 10 years, half month’s last drawn salary for each year of service
b. To the employee serving more than 10 years to 15 years, one month’s last drawn salary for each year of service
c. To the employee serving more than 15 years to 20 years, one and half month’s last drawn salary for each year of
service
d. To the employee serving more than 20 years, Two month’s last drawn salary for each year of service
Gratuity provision is made every year by the microfinance under this plan and this is in nature of defined benefit plan.

3.15.2.3. Other Long-Term Benefits:

Leave

Other long-term benefits include those payments which are not due within 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

The microfinance provides accumulated leave benefits under its Employees Byelaw. The Home leave is accumulated up
to 90 days and there is no limit for the accumulation of sick leave. Accumulated leave benefits are treated as long term
benefit liability. Accumulated leave obligations are calculated based on the actuarial valuations.

3.16 Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or it contains a lease, is based on the substance of the arrangement and
requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the
arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.
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3.16.1 Financial Lease

Agreements which transfer to counterparties substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership
of assets, but not necessarily legal title, are classified as finance lease. As a lessor under finance leases, the
Microfinance presents the amounts due under the leases, after deduction of unearned charges, in ‘Loans and
advances to banks’ or ‘Loans and advances to customers. As a lessee under finance leases, the Microfinance
presents the leased assets in ‘Property, plant and equipment’ and the corresponding liability to the lessor is
included in ‘Other liabilities. A finance lease and its corresponding liability are recognized initially at the fair
value of the asset or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. However, Microfinance does
not have any financial lease transaction as on Ashadh end 2081.

3.16.2. Operating Lease

Lease payments under an operating lease has been recognized as an expense on straight line basis over the lease
term.

Majority of the lease agreement entered by the microfinance are within the clause of normal increment which the
management assumes are in line with the expected inflationary cost. The microfinance operated its branches in
number of lease facilities under operating lease agreement. The payments to the lesser are structured to increase
in line with the general inflation rate to compensate for the lessors expected inflationary cost increment. The
microfinance has been following straight line method of accounting for operating lease agreements since 2078.79
and has continued for 2080.81.

3.17 Share Capital and Reserves
3.17.1. Share Capital

Financial instruments issued are classified as equity when there is no contractual obligation to transfer cash, other
financial assets or issue available number of own equity instruments. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares are shown in equity as deduction net of taxes from the proceeds.

Dividends on ordinary shares classified as equity are recognized in equity in the period in which they are declared.

The shares issue expenses which can be avoided for the issue was charged in the year of issue directly through equity and
disclosed in the statement of changes in equity. Tax impact is also disclosed.

3.17.2. Reserves

The reserve includes regulatory and free reserves.

a)

b)

<)

d)

f)

Statutory General Reserves

20% of the net profit as stated in Bank and financial Institution Act, 2073 and 50% of additional amount of Cash
Dividend and Bonus Shares if declared and distributed in excess of 20% as provisioned in Circular GHA/1/078/79
of NRB Dated 2078/04/11 is set aside to the general reserve.

Exchange Equalization Reserve

This is statutory reserve created in compliance with BAFIA. 25% of the revaluation on the foreign currency
computed as per regulatory books is set aside to Exchange Equalization Reserve.

Assets Revaluation Reserve

This is a non-statutory reserve and is the requirement in the application of accounting policy for non-financial
assets such as property, equipment, investment property and intangible assets that are measured following
revaluation model. Revaluation reserve often serve as a cushion against unexpected loss but may not be
fully available to absorb unexpected losses due to the subsequent deterioration in the market values and tax
consequences of revaluation. The microfinance hasn't followed revaluation model.

Capital reserve

This is a non-statutory reserve and represents the amount of all the capital nature reserves such as the amounts

arising from share forfeiture, capital grants and capital reserve arising out of business combinations. Funds in

this reserve are not available for distribution of cash dividend but can be capitalized by issuing bonus shares

upon obtaining prior approval from the central bank.

Corporate Social Responsibility Fund

1% of net profit is set aside in the fund as per the NRB Directives for the purpose of corporate social responsibility.

Employee Training Fund

The fund is created for the purpose of employee training. As per the directives to microfinance by NRB, the

microfinance needs to spend at least 3% of last fiscal year’s total personnel expenses for the development and
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trainings of the employees. Further if the microfinance couldn’t spend up to the limit of 3%, the shortfall amount

shall be transferred to the Employee Training Fund and shall be used for employee trainings in subsequent years.
g) Actuarial Gain/Loss Reserve

The amount that is allocated from profit or retained earnings of the microfinance both positive or negative to

this reserve as per the directives of NRB for the purpose of implementation of NFRS and which shall not be

regarded as free reserve for distribution of dividend are recorded in this reserve. The reserve includes actuarial

gain/(loss) net of tax on defined benefit plan.

h) Client protection fund
Client protection fund is created at 1% of net profit. In addition to this, 25% of dividend in excess of 20% is also
allocated to this fund as per NRB Directives.
As per the directives 4(1)(Ja)(aa) of NRB issued for microfinance, the microfinance shall earmark and invest
separately the portion of residual amount of the fund. Other reserves
Any other reserve created with specific or non-specific purpose are presented under this by disclosing account
heads.

i) Proposed bonus distribution
The board of the microfinance has not recommended any cash dividend or bonus shares for the reported year
2080.81.

3.18 Earnings per Share (EPS) including diluted EPS

Microfinance presents basic and diluted Earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing
the profit and loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of Bank by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting both the profit and loss attributable to the ordinary equity holders
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

3.19 Segment Reporting

The Microfinance's operating segments are organized and managed separately through the respective department/business
managers according to the nature of products and services provided with each segment representing a strategic business unit.
These business units are reviewed by Chief Executive Officer of the Microfinance.

The Microfinance has identified five segments namely: Madhesh Province, Gandaki Province, Lumbini Province, Karnali
Province and Far West Province as the six operating segment and the segment report is set out in Notes 5.2.2 and 5.2.3.
Segment reports include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.
The income, expenses, assets & liabilities that cannot be allocated to aforesaid segment or those related to head office are
unallocated. The unallocated items generally comprise of head office assets, head office expenses, and tax assets and liabilities.
The geographical segment has been identified on the basis of the location of the branches in 5 different provinces of the country.

4. Disclosure and Additional Information

4.1. Risk Management

In particular, the microfinance program provides financial services to the needy and poor households. Since people in such
households lack awareness and business skills, one has been very careful while doing financial transactions with such people.
This type of financial service is also more prone to risk as financial services have to be provided by making the person aware and
capable of such services. Therefore, identification of risk has been carried out and adequate control system has been adopted
in order to mitigate such current and possible future risks in the Microfinance. The robust risk management capabilities are
imperative in order to achieve an effective risk management framework and contain the risks associated with the business, a
fully functional Risk Management Committee is responsible for identifying reporting, controlling and managing credit risk,
operational risk, market risk & liquidity risk. The Risk Management Committee oversees global, macro, micro and departmental
level risk that arise out of daily business operation as well as on periodic basis and are put to the oversight of Senior Management,
Risk Management Committee and the Board committee to discuss the reports thereon and issue instructions as appropriate.

Risk Management Committee:

The Risk Management Committee is an independent committee of the Board of Directors that has, as its sole and exclusive
function, responsibility for the risk management policies of the Microfinance and oversight of implementation of risk
management framework of Microfinance. The committee assists the Board of Directors in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities
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with regard to risk appetite that the Microfinance is able and willing to assume in its exposures and business activities, risk
management, compliance framework, and governance structure that supports it. It periodically reviews the risk management
process to ensure its integrity, accuracy, and reasonableness. It also reviews whether the internal control and risk management
system is adequate or not to ensure well-ordered and prudent conduct of business. The committee is to review the overall
risk management structure and monitor the effectiveness of the risk management system. The Risk Management Committee
comprises of following Members:

S.N. Name Designation
1 Mr. Tulsi Ram Khanal Convenor

2 Mr. Rajan Tiwari Member

3 Mr. Damodar Sigdel Member

4 Mr. Arjun Prasad Lamsal Secretary

Risk Governance

Microfinance implemented policies and procedures to mitigate the risk at enterprises level arising to the microfinance and has
trained risk culture among the employees by establishing ownership mentality, capacity building programs, well defined job
responsibilities and inhabiting good ethical culture. The Risk Management Committee is responsible for the establishment
of, and compliance with, policies relating to Operation risk & Credit risk.

The Microfinance’s risk governance structure is such that the responsibility for maintaining risk within the Microfinance's risk
blanket is dropped down from the Board to the appropriate functional, client business, senior management and committees.
The Board has set policies and procedures of risk identification, risk evaluation, risk mitigation, and control/ monitoring in
line with NRB directives, and has effectively implemented the same. The effectiveness of the Microfinance’s internal control
system is reviewed regularly by the Board, its committees, senior management, and internal audit committee.

5.1.1. Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk to meet short term financial demands. This usually occurs due to the inability to convert a security
or hard asset to cash without a loss of capital and/or income in the process. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that
the Microfinance might be unable to meet its payment obligations when they fall due, as a result of mismatches in the timing
of the cash flows under both normal and stress circumstances. Such scenarios could occur when funding needed for liquid
asset positions is not available to the Microfinance on acceptable terms. Due to lack of liquidity, entities are not able to invest
as per the demand of the customer, they are not able to repay the savings and other legal obligations on time. Therefore, the
microfinance has managed the liquidity as per its requirement in time to prevent such a situation.

5.1.2. Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the potential that a change in overall interest rates will reduce the value of a bond or other fixed- rate
investment. The Microfinance will take the following measures to minimize the risk arising from interest rates:

a.  Only assets and liabilities affected by changes in interest rates has been included in the assets and liabilities.

b.  When analyzing the difference in the situation where the payment term of assets and liabilities does not match, the amount
of cash balance and non-payment of interest has been included.

c. In order to manage and minimize the interest rate risk, the Microfinance has prepared quarterly (October, December,
March and mid-July) details and submitted them to the Supervision Department of Nepal Rastra Bank within fifteen
days after the end of the quarter.

d. Following the Interest Rate restriction on loans and advances advanced by the microfinance to maximum of 15% p.a.
whilst the overall borrowing rate of the microfinance from other banks and financial institutions reached as high as 14%,
the microfinance has yet to discover ways to mitigate and manage the interest rate risk.

5.1.3. Credit Risk
Credit risk is the probability that any creditor will not be able to repay the loan as per the condition accepted by the borrower.
Credit is the main wealth or sources of income of any financial institution. The future of the financial institution is at stake
when the borrower is unable to repay the loan borrower had agreed at the time of taking the loan. Therefore, it is necessary
to study the impacting indicators to get information about the condition of the loan at risk. In order to prevent the loss
of the loan invested and to minimize the risks related to it, Standard loan disbursement procedure is followed to reduce
the risk accordingly. Since every employee involved in the process of approving the loan and investing will be assigned
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a certain responsibility, the concerned employee will have to invest the loan realizing their responsibility. The following

procedures/practices have been followed:

o Analyze the Requirement and Repayment Capacity for the demanded loan,

o Invest in loans based on disciplinary records of the borrower,

«  Monitor utility of the borrowed fund in the following months of borrowing and ensuring the fund is utilized for income
generating activities/businesses,

o Motivated members to increase savings,

o  Taking details of the borrower's business and income and expenditure at the time of loan application, for business loans,

«  Taking necessary documents of secured property, if collateral loan,

o Classify the loans and arrange the loss provision as per the directives of Nepal Rastra Bank,

o  Disbursement of loans within the limits prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank,

o  Continuously monitor and inspect the loan from the unit manager, branch manager and monitoring level. If the interest
is not paid on time or with delay, the branch should report to the monitoring, the monitoring to the regional manager
and the regional manager to the chief executive officer within 24 hours with detailed details.

o In the monthly performance appraisal of the staffs, a definite score will be given in this title including the title of loan
recovery of the branch to be monitored.

o Each branch will be audited twice a year. While conducting such audit, it is compulsory for Internal Auditors to inspect
the monthly meetings of few of the units and submit the details observed in meetings through Audit report, either
observed compliance and other discrepancies or not.

Owing to the risk arisen in Microfinance Industry in the economy of Nepal, Credit Risk has rised significantly with increase in

number of defaultees. Microfinance has been able to manage credit risk to an acceptable level with the provision of Insurance

of Microfiannce loans.

5.1.4.0perational Risk

The risk that arises during the day-to-day operations of an entity is called operating risk. In this program, small but large
number of transactions has been done, decentralized working method has been adopted, more focus has been given on area
expansion, priority has been given to cost reduction, Due to lack of integrated information system, expansion of programs in
rural areas with lack of infrastructure and lack of appropriate technology to provide services as per the needs of the customers,
there is always a possibility of operational risk in this program. The entity has arranged the necessary staff to carry out various
responsibilities for daily operations. All the employees have to carry out their post responsibilities in the working process
within the policy rules specified by the entity. But sometimes due to the negligence of the employees and personal interests,
the organization is at risk when it goes beyond the policy rules. This type of risk is likely to reduce the entity's income, the
increase entity's credit risk (Reputation Risk). Since the operational risk is due to internal factors, this risk can be reduced
only if the internal control system is strengthened.

5.1.5.Market Risk
The Microfinance recognizes market risk as the possibility for loss of earnings or economic value to the Microfinance
caused due to adverse changes in the market level of interest rates or prices of securities (equity), foreign exchange rates and
volatilities of those prices. Microfinance has an Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) which meets periodically to
discuss product pricing for deposits and advances and maturity profiles of assets and liabilities, articulating interest rate, view
of Microfinance, funding policy and balance sheet management. After Understanding the market conditions and demands,
the Board and the management bring programs to suit the potentials and conditions of the market, and reduce the risk by
providing appropriate responsibilities to the employees from the top to the bottom based on their capabilities. For this, the
internal control system has been strengthened.
The following has been considered in market analysis:
o Information about competitors' services (programs) and interest rates
«  Attitude of the members towards the organization
o Perception of other banks and financial institutions towards this microfinance
o Cost of service
o  Fluctuations from changes in policy rules
o  Strategies adopted by other organizations to attract their customers
o  Customer dropout/retention rate
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The Market Risk has increased significantly in comparison to previous year. The volatility of market and anti-Microfinance
movements might have serious impact on business.

5.1.6. Institutional or Strategic Risk
Strategic risk is often a major factor in determining a company's worth, particularly observable if the company experiences
a sharp decline in a short period of time. Due to this and its influence on compliance risk, it is a leading factor in modern
risk management. In order to manage this risk, the following things has been considered:
o Strategies has been decided or modified according to the overall economic and social environment of the country,
o Keeping abreast of the services provided by their competitors and their status,
«  Providing service facilities as much as possible without giving in to the expectations and desires of our customers
o  Adopting appropriate strategies in resource mobilization,

5.1.7. Internal Control Risk

The Board and Management is committed to managing risks and in controlling its business and financial activities in
a manner which enables it to maximize profitable business opportunities, avoid or reduce risks which can cause loss or
reputational damage, ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations and enhance resilience to external events. To
achieve this, the Board and management has adopted policies and procedures of risk identification, risk evaluation, risk
mitigation and control/monitoring.

The effectiveness of the Company’s internal control system is reviewed regularly by the Board, its Committees, Management
and Internal Audit. The Audit Committee has reviewed the effectiveness of the entity's system of internal control during the year
and provided feedback to the Board as appropriate. The entity has its own Internal Audit function to maintain independency
on the internal control system of institution. The Internal Audit Department monitors compliance with policies/standards and
the effectiveness of internal control structures across the Company through its program of business/unit audits. The Internal
Audit function is focused on the areas of greatest risk as determined by a risk-based assessment methodology. Internal Audit
reports are quarterly forwarded to the Audit Committee. The findings of all audits are reported to the Chief Executive Officer
and Business Heads for initiating immediate corrective measures.

5.1.8. Compliance Risk

The Microfinance is committed to follow best practices and market standards in the areas of accountability, transparency
and business ethics. It aims for zero tolerance of misconduct. In the day-to-day operations the three lines of defense model
defines the roles and responsibilities for compliance and integrity risk in the Microfinance. The first line of defense lies with
the respective Microfinance departments and units, which are responsible for ensuring that compliance risks are identified,
understood and reported to the management and to Compliance Officer. The second line of defense lies with Compliance
Officer, which assesses and monitors the compliance and integrity risks and coordinates its control activities with the Risk
Management Unit. The Chief Compliance Officer reports to the CEO. Internal Audit Department is the third line of defense.
The Compliance function assists the Microfinance in identifying, assessing, monitoring and reporting on compliance risks
in matters relating to the institution, its operations and the personal conduct of staff members.

5.1.9. Fair value of financial assets and Liabilities

Fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity specific measurement. For some assets and liabilities, observable
market transactions or market information might be available. For other assets and liabilities, observable market transactions
and market information might not be available. However, the objective of a fair value measurement in both cases is the same
— to estimate the price at which an orderly transaction to sell the asset or to transfer the liability would take place between
market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price at the measurement date
from the perspective of a market participant that holds the asset or owes the liability).

Fair values are determined according to the following hierarchy:

Level 1-

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at
the measurement date. Held for trading and available for sale investments have been recorded using Level 1 inputs.

Level 2-

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly.
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Level 3-
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy:

2080-81 2079-80
Particulars Level I Level 1T Level IIT | Level I Level I Level III
Quoted Equities -

Unquoted Equities

Nepal Finsoft Company Ltd
(10,000 Ordinary Share of NPR.100 Paid up) 1,000,000 1,000,000
Quoted Mutual Funds - -

Total 10,00,000 10,00,000

5.2.Capital management

(@

The Microfinance's capital management policies and practices support its business strategy and ensure that it is adequately
capitalized to withstand even in severe macroeconomic downturns. The microfinance is a licensed institution providing
financial services therefore it must comply with capital requirement of Nepal Rastra Bank.

Qualitative disclosures

Nepal Rastra Bank has directed the Microfinance to develop own internal policy, procedures and structures to manage
all material risk inherent in business for assessing capital adequacy in relation to the risk profiles as well as strategies for
maintaining capital levels. This includes basic requirements of having good governance, efficient process of managing all
material risks and an effective regime for assessing and maintaining adequate capital. The Microfinance BODs approved risk
management policies for proper governance. The Microfinance has developed a comprehensive ICAAP document which is
subject to review every year. The ICAAP has two major components; first is an internal process to identify, measure, manage
and report risks to which the microfinance is exposed or could be exposed in the future; and second is an internal process
to plan and manage a microfinance’s capital so as to ensure adequate capital. The microfinance prepares the ICAAP report
annually complying with the NRB requirement. The report is reviewed and analyzed by Risk Management Committee and
Board.

(ii) Qualitative disclosures
Capital Structure and Capital Adequacy
* Tier 1 Capital and a breakdown of its components:

Particulars 31.03.2081
Paid Up Equity Share Capital 246,865,736

Irredeemable Non-Cumulative Preference Shares

Share Premium

Proposed Bonus Equity Shares
Statutory General Reserves 53,152,507

Retained Earnings -22,706,569
Un-Audited Current Year Cumulative Profit

Special Reserve Fund
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Capital Adjustment Reserves

Dividend Equalization Reserves

Capital Redemption Reserves Fund

Deferred Tax Reserve 11,592,826.49

Less: Goodwill

Less: Intangible Assets

Less: Fictitious Assets

Less: Deferred Tax Assets -11,592,826.49

Less: Investment in Equity of Licensed Financial Institutions

Less: Investment in Equity of Institutions with Financial
Interests

Less: Investment in Equity of Institutions in Excess of Limits

Less: Investments Arising Out of Underwriting Commitments

Less: Purchase of Land & Building in Excess of Limit &
Utilized

Less: Reciprocal Crossholdings

Less: Other Deductions

Total Tier 1 Capital 277,311,674

* Tier 2 Capital and a breakdown of its components:

Particulars Amount (NPR.)
Cumulative And/ Or Redeemable Preference Share -

Subordinated Term Debt -

Hybrid Capital Instruments -

General Loan Loss Provision 28,546,412

Exchange Equalization Reserves

Investments Adjustment Reserves

Assets Revaluation Reserves

Special Reserve Fund

Total Tier 2 Capital 28,546,412

* Total Qualifying Capital

Particulars Amount (NPR.)
Core Capital (Tier 1) 277,311,674
Supplementary Capital (Tier 2) 28,546,412
Total Capital Fund 305,858,086
Minimum Capital Fund to be maintained based on Risk | %

Weighted Assets

Minimum Capital Fund Required (8.0 % of RWA) 8.00%
Minimum Core Capital Required (4.0 % of RWA) 4.00%

Capital Fund maintained (in %) 8.04%

Core Capital maintained (in %) 7.29%
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* Statement of Risk Weighted Assets (RWA) At the month end of Ashadh, 2081
A. On-Balance-Sheet Items

S.N. Description Weight (%) Current Period RWA
Amount (NPR.)

1 Cash Balance 0 9,029,115 -

2 Gold (Tradable) 0 -

3 Nrb Balance 0 81,090,000 -

4 Investment To Govt. Bond 0 -

5 Investment To Nrb Bond 0 -

6 Loan Against Own Fd 0 -

7 Loan Against Govt. Bond 0 -

8 Accrued Interests On Govt. Bond 0 -

9 Investment To Youth And Small |0 -
Entrepreneurs Self-Employment Fund

10 Balance On Domestic Banks And | 20 127,780,871 25,556,174.19
Financial Institutions

11 |Loan Against Other Banks' And |20 -
Financial Institutions' Fd

12 | Foreign Bank Balance 20 -

13 Money At Call 20 40000000 8,000,000.00

14 |Loan Against Internationally Rated |20 -
Bank Guarantee

15 | Investment To Internationally Rated |20 -
Banks

16 | Inter-Bank Lending 20 -

17 Investment On | 100 - -
Shares/Debentures/Bonds

18 Other Investments 100 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00

19 Loans & Advances, Bills | 100 3,650,958,561 3,650,958,560.93
Purchase/Discount

20 Fixed Assets 100 35,081,698 35,081,697.57

21 Net Interest Receivables (Toral Ir - 8 - | 100 -
Interest Supsense)

22 | Net Non-Banking Asset 100 -

23 | Other Assets (Except Advance Tax | 100 6,561,764 6,561,764.36
Payment)

24 | Real Estate/Residential Housing Loans | 150 -
Exceeding The Limits
Total On-Balance-sheet Items (A) 3,951,502,009 3,727,158,197
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S.N. Description Weight Current period
(%) Amount (NPR.) RWA
1 Bills Collection 0 - -
2 Forward Foreign Exchange Contract | 10 - -
L/C With Maturity Less Than Six |20 - -
Months (Outstanding Value)
4 Guarantee Against International Rated | 20 - -
Bank'S Counter Guarrantee
5 | L/C With Maturity More Than Six | 50 - -
Months (Outstanding Value)
6 Bid Bond, Performance Bond And |50 - -
Underwriting
7 Loan Sale With Repurchase Agreement | 50 - -
Advance Payment Guarantee 100 - -
9 Financial And Other Guarantee 100 - -
10 | Irrevocable Loan Commitment 100 - -
11 | Possible Liabilities For Income Tax 100 - -
12 | All Types Of Possible Liabilities | 100 - -
Including Acceptance
13 | Rediscounted Bills 100 - -
14 | Unpaid Portion Of Partly Paid Share | 100 - -
Investment
15 | Unpaid Guarantee Claims 200 - -
16 | Amount To Be Maintained For | 100 79,030,040 79,030,040
Operational Risk (2% Of Total Assets)
Total Off-Balance-sheet Items (B) 79,030,040 79,030,040
Total Risk Weighted Assets (A) + (B) 4,030,532,049 3,806,188,237
Loan Category
Particular Amount Loan Loss Provision
Good 2,684,841,350.00 9,932,960.00
Watchlist 315,343,690.00 4,359,463.82
Restructure/ Rescheduling 474,073,938.02 9,358,696.68
Sub Standard 30,151,450.00 1,978,252.11
Doubtful 16,220,080.00 2,375,212.28
Loss 95,404,120.00 34,336,950.00
Additional Loan Loss Provision 16,596,770.00
Total Loan 3,616,034,628.02 78,938,304.89
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Amount of Non-Performing Assets (both Gross and Net):
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Particular

Gross Amount Loan Loss Provision Net NPL
Sub Standard 30,151,450.00 1,978,252.11 28,173,197.89
Doubtful 16,220,080.00 2,375,212.28 13,844,867.72
Loss 95,404,120.00 34,336,950.00 61,067,170.00
Total Loan 141,775,650.00 38,690,414.39 103,085,235.61

5.2.1. General information
A component of the Microfinance that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur losses,
including revenue and expenses that relate to transactions with any other components of the microfinance, whose operating
results are reviewed regularly by the management to make decisions about resources allocation to each segment and assess
its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available is termed as operating segment.
Based on the nature of the business, transactions, products and services, the management have identified seven reporting
segments of the microfinance for the purpose of financial reporting:
a. Madhesh Pradesh
b. Gandaki Province
¢.  Lumbini Province
d. Karnali Province
e. Far West Province
5.2.2. Information about profit or loss, assets and liabilities
Information of segment profit and loss has been presented in schedule 4.40.

5.2.3. Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities
Information of segment reconcilation revenue, profit and loss, assets and liabilities has been presented in schedule 4.41.

5.2.4. Information about major customers
The Microfinance does not have any customer, which generate more than 10% of the entity’s revenue.

5.3. Share options and share based payment
The Microfinance does not extend the share options and share based payment to any of its employees. Thus, during the reporting
period the Microfinance does not have any the transactions that are to be accounted as per NFRS 2 “Share based payments”.

5.4. Contingent liabilities and commitment
Comprehensive disclosure of the contingent liabilities and commitments are made on Note 4.26.

5.5. Related Party Disclosures

5.5.1. List of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
The following parties have been identified as the related party transaction as per NAS 24:

S.N. | Name Relationship Date of Investment | Date of appointment | Date of retirement
1 Khadga Bahadur Rana Chairman 2070.09.17 2077.12.31 2081.12.30
2 Khilraj Mainali Director 2074.09.17 2077.12.31 2081.12.30
3 Tulasi Ram Khanal Director 2077.03.26 2077.12.31 2081.12.30
4 Lal Bahadur Thapa Director 2080.05.30 2080.09.29 2081.12.30
5 Rajan Tiwari Director 2077.12.31 2081.12.30
6 Yam Kumar Khadka Director 2077.11.05 2077.12.31 2081.12.30
7 Bhagrab Dhital Independent Director 2076.07.30 2080.07.29
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5.5.2. Transactions with and Payments to Directors & Key Managerial Personnel
Board of Directors Allowances and Facilities

S.N. | Particulars No of Meetings | Sitting Fees (NPR.)
1 Board Meeting 16 5,34,500.00
2 Audit Committee Meeting 7 52,500.00
3 Risk Management Committee 6 74,500.00
4 Assets Money Laundering Prevention Committee 4 55,000.00
5 Others ( Employee Pay Committee) 5 50,500.00
Total 7,67,000.00

Chief Executive Officer’s Mr. Prem Bahadur Pathak Emoluments and Facilities (1st Shrawan 2080 to 32th Jestha, 2081)

S.N. Particulars Amount (NPR.)
1 Short Term Employee Benefits 26,09,043.29

2 Retirement Benefits 0

3 Others 0

Total 26,09,043.29

In addition to above, the Microfinance also provide other facilities like telephone, Medical Insurance, Accidental Insurance,
Travelling Allowance and Leave pay as per the approved employee facilities of the Microfinance.
Staff loan has been provided to Chief Executive Officer as follows:

Approved Amount

Particulars

Outstanding Amount

Interest Rate

9,00,000.00

Staff Social Loan

6,73,139.88

15%

Act.Chief Executive Officer’s Mr. Narayan Adhikari Emoluments and Facilities (1st Ashad 2081)
Mr. Narayan Adhikari was appointed as acting CEO from 2081.03.01. He was involved in the company in the capacity of

Deputy CEO before that.
S.N. Particulars Amount (NPR.)
1 Short Term Employee Benefits 19,48,092.60
2 Retirement Benefits 0
3 Others 0
Total 19,48,092.60

In addition to above, the Microfinance also provide other facilities like telephone, Medical Insurance, Accidental Insurance,
Travelling Allowance and Leave pay as per the approved employee facilities of the Microfinance.
Staff loan has been provided to Chief Executive Officer as follows:

Approved Amount

Particulars

Outstanding Amount

Interest Rate

7,00,000.00

Staff Social Loan

589412.91

9.14%

5.6. Merger and Acquisition

The Microfinance has acquired Sahakarya Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited commencing joint operation from 2077.03.26. The
business combination has been accounted as follows:
Calculation of Goodwill on business combination:
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Particulars No. of Shares Per Share Value Amount

Share issued for consideration 271,875.00 614.38 167,034,562.50
Total Assets 594,799,344.99
Total Liabilities 565,865,712.38
Statutory Reserves -

Net Assets 28,933,632.61
Goodwill/ (Gain from bargain Purchase) 138,100,929.89

The goodwill had been accounted in with retrospective effect in the opening financial statements for FY 2078-79. Regulatory
reserve had been subsequently adjusted for the amount equivalent to the goodwill for 2078-79.

The goodwill recognized at 138,100,929.89 during the merger is written off as an adjustment to Regulatory Reserve in the
current year. The goodwill is impaired completely during the FY 2079-80 as a result of increase in Market Risk, Credit Risk,
Interest Rate Risk and Default Risk of Borrowers.

Particulars No. of Shares Per Share Value Amount
Opening Goodwill 138,100,929.89
Less: Impairment (138,100,929.89)
Closing Goodwill 0.00

5.7. Additional disclosure of non-consolidated entities
The microfinance doesn’t have any subsidiaries & associates. So, additional disclosure is not required.
5.8. Events after reporting date

No events requiring the adjustment as per NAS 10 "Events occurring after Reporting Period" are observed after the reporting
period.

CA. Rabin Dhakal

Khadga Bahadur Rana Khil Raj Mainali Tulasi Ram Khanal Lal Bahadur Thapa For, Rabin Dhakal and Associates,

Chai Direct Direct Direct
airman irector irector irector Chartered Accountants
Rajan Tiwari Yam Kumar Khadka Narayan Adhiakari Pradip Kumar Yadav
Director Director Acting Chief Executive Officer Chief - Finance Officer
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